
        4900 EARHART ROAD • LOVELAND, CO 80538 

MEETING AGENDA 
THURSDAY APRIL 20, 2023 

3:30PM – 5:00PM 
CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
CONSENT AGENDA 

1. MARCH 16, 2023, MEETING MINUTES  p. 2
2. MARCH FINANCIAL STATEMENT  p. 6
3. MARCH AIRPORT DIRECTOR’S REPORT  p. 8
4. LEASE EXTENSION REQUEST – 5255 NORTHROP  p. 40
5. AIMS COMMUNITY COLLEGE ACCESS AGREEMENT RENEWAL  p. 42

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
AIRPORT DIRECTOR’S REPORT HIGHLIGHTS 
REGULAR AGENDA 

6. T-HANGAR LEASE UPDATE WITH CONSIDERATION OF TENANT LEASE PROPOSAL
WITH POSSIBLE EXECUTIVE SESSION CONSISTENT WITH C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(a),
C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(b), and/or C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(e)(I) – ACTION ITEM (75 MIN)
p. 83

7. STRATEGIC ACTION PLAN ADOPTION & WORKPLAN – ACTION ITEM (15 MIN)
p. 89

8. BUSINESS FROM MEMBERS
PULLED CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
ADJOURN 

Next Planning & Development Subcommittee Meeting: April 26 @ 3:30pm.  
Agenda and materials will be made available at www.flynoco.com/airport-commission/pdsc. 

Meeting Planning Calendar
May 18

•Runway Widending Design
Project Grant Approvals

•Terminal Project Construction
Contract

•Remote Tower Project Update

June 15
•2022 Financial Audit

Presentation
•Airport Land Use Plan Study

Session

July 20
•Airport Staffing Support

Presentation
•Airport Commission Roles and

Responsibilities Training
•Preliminary Budget Presentation

http://www.flynoco.com/airport-commission/pdsc


 
 

March 16, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
 

Call to Order: Chair Overcash called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m. 
  
Roll Call: Chair Overcash, Vice-Chair Fleming, Commissioners Adams, 

Arndt, DiMartino, and Stooksbury were present. Commissioner 
Burgener was absent 

  
3:32 pm Commissioner Burgener arrived 
  
Public Comments: None 
  
Consent Agenda 
 
Vice-Chair Fleming moved to approve the Consent Agenda. The motion, seconded by 
Commissioner Adams carried with all the Commissioners present voting in favor 
thereof. 
  
Pulled Items None 
Consent Follow up None 
  
Monthly Report 
Follow-up: 

• Airport staff traveled to Washington DC two weeks ago and 
met with Congressional staff and House Aviation 
subcommittee staff. This is an important time as legislative 
priorities are being discussed mainly the FAA Reauthorization 
Bill. Topics that impact FNL have been shared with officials 
who will be traveling to DC later this month. Airport staff also 
discussed the CO Remote Tower project with FAA project 
team members during these meetings. 

• Searidge currently updating the Remote Tower system at FNL 
to meet increased visibility requirements with FAA due to 
review the installed improvements during the week of March 
27. 

• Fort Collins Council passed their contribution towards the 
Terminal project on the second reading on March 7 keeping 
the project on track to meet deadlines. The project is 
currently still withing budget with this recent approval and 
negotiations are underway with the construction provider on 
guaranteed maximum price, anticipating this to be finalized 
in the middle of next month, April. 

• The Airport’s annual audit begins this month. 
• Highlighted differences between Leesburg Saab project and 

FNL project. Leesburg was privately driven and not managed 
by the FAA and funded by Leesburg Airport. FNL project was 
fully funded by the state of Colorado and led with full 

002



 
 

support by the FAA from the beginning and selected the 
vendor to create the system at FNL. 

  
Public Comments: None 
 
Regular Agenda 
  
6. T-Hangar Tenant 
Presentation 

At the March 2nd Airport Commission special meeting, the 
Commission directed staff to begin decommissioning of the 4 
hangar buildings owned by the Cities with a deadline of May 10 
for A and B hangars and July 10 for C hangars. This motion was 
amended to include the ability for displaced tenants to bring 
forward ideas that can be considered by the Airport 
Commission at their next two meetings (March 16 and April 20).  
This item will be the opportunity for tenants to provide their 
ideas or proposals to the Airport Commission and allow for the 
Commissioners to ask questions.  This will be an informational 
item and no action will be taken.  

  
Public Comments: The following public members provided comments on their 
unhappiness with the Commission’s use of executive sessions as advised by Cities’ 
Legal Departments, and repeated questions from the last several meetings regarding 
RFP procedural questions, how this situation occurred, and how hangar revenue 
affects operations and maintenance. Two commenters’ names are omitted as they did 
not state their names for the record: Martin Lind, land lessee tenant; Scott Holst, 
property manager for Discovery Air; Howard Abraham, Fort-Love Hangars. 
 
MOTION: Commissioner Stooksbury moved to delay the hangar vacancy dates by 30 
days, June 10 for A&B hangars and August 10 for C hangars, to allow Airport staff to 
work with the Cities staff and tenants to conduct a more thorough structural analysis 
to bring forward for the Commission to review at the April 20 meeting to review in a 
public session or by use of executive session if necessary. The motion, seconded by 
Commissioner Arndt carried with all the Commissioners present voting in favor 
thereof. 
  
7. Future Hangar 
Development Sites 

At the March 2nd special Commission meeting, the Commission 
directed staff to begin the decommissioning of the Cities’ 
owned T-hangars, accelerating the need for the creation of 
more available airport land for hangar development.   
 
The area north of runway 6/24 also identified as “Site C” was 
identified as a focus area for future hangar development and 
approved for preliminary planning by the Airport Commission 
on June 16, 2023. This selection was confirmed after evaluating 

003



 
 

various sites suitable for the construction of small aircraft 
storage hangars.   
 
Since this time, Airport Staff have worked to create a general 
layout of this area in alignment with the Airport Master Plan 
and created some conceptual budgetary figures for the 
infrastructure needed to allow this site to become shovel ready 
for hangar development.  It was also included in the adopted 
Airport Capital Improvement Plan for 2023 & 2024. 
 
The Airport Capital Plan calls for the environmental review to 
be accomplished in 2023, and the securing of resources to 
apply toward infrastructure needs in this area.   
 
Additionally, a hangar site has become available due to the 
lessor vacating their land lease agreement prior to construction.  
The Site at 5271 Beechcraft St is available again and is suitable 
for the construction of a 2,500 square foot hangar.  This 
available lot has been inquired about by multiple interested 
parties, and staff recommends that this lot be made available 
through a request for proposals (RFP) process.  Staff requests 
that the Airport Commission direct the PDSC to approve the 
RFP to be drafted and published so that it can be made 
available to those interested in submitting.   

  
Direction Staff will create an RFP for the 5271 Beechcraft lot, prioritizing 

bids from affected hangar tenants. Staff will also begin 
preliminary infrastructure design and environmental study 
simultaneously for the area development north of runway 6/24 
and also develop a selection criterion to determine selection of 
proposed developments. 

  
Public Comments: None 
  
Commissioner Stooksbury moved to continue item 8 at the next Commission 
meeting on April 20. The motion, seconded by Commissioner Burgener carried with 
all the Commissioners present voting in favor thereof. 
 
Adjournment: Meeting adjourned at 5:23 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Vice-Chair, Tom Fleming 

004



005



 
 
 
 

              

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission  

 

 

ITEM NUMBER: 2 
MEETING DATE: April 20, 2023 

PREPARED BY: Jason R. Licon, Airport Director 
 
TITLE 
Monthly Financial Statement 
 
RECOMMENDED AIRPORT COMMISSION ACTION 
Staff recommend acceptance of the preliminary financial statement as presented. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT 
Neutral 
 
SUMMARY 
Financial highlights for the month of March include: 

• Aviation business lease deferral balance was paid down to $108,255 for the 
period April 2020 – March 2023 with two companies in the program. The 
balances are being paid on a monthly schedule by one company and the other 
has agreed to pay at the end of the term. Both balances are accruing interest. 

• The monthly statement indicates just over $7 million within the net position 
available for use. This amount includes $4 million as approved by the Airport 
Commission and City Councils to be applied toward the terminal project. Within 
this amount $2 million is from the CARES Act operations and maintenance grant, 
which has been fully drawn down over the past two years and this month was 
closed, and $2 million for the local matching contribution.  

o An accurate net position available for use is $3 million which is planned for 
future federal funding grant matches, specifically $1 million for the $14 
million runway widening project in 2025, and the remainder maintaining 
the operational financial reserve.  

• Fuel volumes increased by 3.8% in March as compared to the same month last 
year. 

 Mar ‘23 Mar ‘22 
Jet-A  88,031  88,016 
AvGas  20,009  16,048 

 

ATTACHMENT 
Preliminary monthly financial statement for March 
 

006



Y-T-D 2023 Actual Y-T-D 2022 Actual Y-T-D 2023 Budget 2023 Total Budget
% of Total 

Budget

OPERATING REVENUES

Hangar Rental 60,108 60,681 63,750 255,000 24%
FBO Rent 23,543 23,543 23,534 94,134 25%
Gas and Oil Commissions 43,851 43,748 47,499 190,000 23%
Aviation Fuel Tax Reimbursement 89,051 67,255 41,625 166,500 53%
Land Lease 152,517 104,263 125,001 500,000 31%
Land Lease PD Training Ctr 103,043 92,139 97,902 391,600 26%
Terminal Lease and Landing Fees 3,724 8,067 3,102 12,400 30%
Parking 0 0 0 0 0%
Miscellaneous 8,533 9,633 36,225 144,900 6%

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 484,370 409,329 438,638 1,754,534 28%

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personal Services 193,146 166,223 272,385 1,089,540 18%
Supplies 25,132 41,285 38,354 124,900 20%
Purchased Services 57,267 69,981 367,089 1,496,860 4%

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 275,545 277,489 677,828 2,711,300 10%

OPERATING GAIN (LOSS) 208,825 131,840 (239,190) (956,766)

NONOPERATING 
REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Passenger Facility Charge 0 0 0 0  
Interest Income 11,871 6,159 12,750 51,000 23%
Capital Expenditures (69,418) (32,049) (7,722,918) (30,891,667) 0%

TOTAL NONOPERATING 
REVENUES (EXPENSES) (57,547) (25,890) (7,710,168) (30,840,667)

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE 
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 151,279 105,950 (7,949,358) (31,797,433)

Capital Contributions 1,102,505 900 7,812,000 31,248,000 4%

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1,253,784 106,850 (137,358) (549,433)

NET POSITION, Beginning 21,237,480 19,864,422 

NET POSITION, Ending 22,491,264 19,971,272 
Investment in Capital Assets 15,440,026 15,805,175 
Net Position Available for use 7,051,238 4,166,096 

Airport Statement of Revenues and Expenses
From 01/01/2023 to 03/31/2023

PRELIMINARY

007



 
 

Date: April 15, 2023 
To: Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission 
From: Jason R. Licon, Airport Director 
Re: March Airport Report 
 
Report Highlights 

• The Remote Tower system was partially modified by Searidge Technologies by installing 
four 4K cameras and displays in mid-March to prepare for FAA evaluations later in the 
month. 

• The FAA was onsite March 27-30 to test the temporarily installed new camera and 
displays to determine capabilities of achieving the updated visibility requirements. 
Subject matter experts from NextGen, Air Traffic Services (AJT), and the National Air 
Traffic Controllers Association (NATCA) were onsite. 

• Planned decommissioning of the Cities’ owned t-hangars was delayed for 30 days, 
providing tenants with a new date to vacate hangars. June 10 for A&B hangars, and 
August 10 for the C hangars. This decision was made to allow Cities’ staff and tenants to 
conduct a more thorough structural engineering analysis and bring back data for Airport 
Commission review at the next meeting.  

• As a result of the t-hangar decision, staff have been working to vacate the storage units 
within the hangar rows that have been used to store airport equipment and materials. 
Two temporary storage containers were purchased to keep some of the more sensitive 
materials and items in a dry environment.  

• Landline/United service has noticeably risen in ridership due to new promotions the 
service is offering in addition to the nine round trips daily. Passenger loads are 
noticeably higher, and the terminal parking area has experienced higher occupancy 
levels. 

February Airport Activity Dashboard 

• Flight operations for the month of March averaged 296 per day, and the twelve-month 
rolling average is 299. 

• Wholesale fuel ordered by the jetCenter FBO was 108,040 gallons, a slight increase of 
3.8% compared to last year’s 104,064 gallons.  

• Business jet activity for February compared to the same month last year dropped by 
16.8% to 218 operations. This decline has been a trend that has gone back to prior to 
the pandemic. Trends show that business jet activities peak near September and slowly 
decline through the following March where they pick up again. A longer five-year 
timeline chart has been added to the dashboard to show this data trend. 
 

008



 

 
 
 
 

 

317
295 290

318
287

333 324
375

298

223
270 279 296

0
50

100
150
200
250
300
350
400

Airport Operations 8am - 6pm 
Daily Avg/Month

0
50

100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450

Fe
b-

22

M
ar

-2
2

A
pr

-2
2

M
ay

-2
2

Ju
n-

22

Ju
l-2

2

A
ug

-2
2

Se
p-

22

O
ct

-2
2

N
ov

-2
2

D
ec

-2
2

Ja
n-

23

Fe
b-

23

FNL Business Jet Activity 13-Months

0
20000
40000
60000
80000

100000
120000
140000
160000
180000

Jan Feb Ma Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Total Fuel Year over Year Comparison

2020 2021 2022 2023

0
50

100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450
500

Ja
n-

19

M
ar

-1
9

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
l-1

9

Se
p-

19

N
ov

-1
9

Ja
n-

20

M
ar

-2
0

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
l-2

0

Se
p-

20

N
ov

-2
0

Ja
n-

21

M
ar

-2
1

M
ay

-2
1

Ju
l-2

1

Se
p-

21

N
ov

-2
1

Ja
n-

22

M
ar

-2
2

M
ay

-2
2

Ju
l-2

2

Se
p-

22

N
ov

-2
2

Ja
n-

23

FNL Business Jet Activity Jan 2019 - Feb 2023

009



Airport Owned T-Hangars Update 
 
The Commission held a special meeting on March 2 to review information on the Cities’ owned 
t-hangars. It was decided at this meeting that all T-hangar leases for four buildings would no 
longer be renewed and provided a time certain at which all tenants needed to be moved from 
the units. The Airport Commission provided tenants an opportunity to bring forth ideas to work 
with staff on the issue for a different resolution at the March 16 and April 20 meeting. On 
March 9 a tenant town hall was held to provide more details on the report for the hangar users 
and to provide a forum to allow users to organize to develop their alternative proposals for the 
Commission. On March 10 the Coloradoan reported that Discovery Air provided a permanent 
hangar space for the soon to be displaced Civil Air Patrol (CAP) aircraft within their new hangar 
facility which the CAP accepted.  
 
The hangar tenants presented their proposal for an alternative solution at the March 16 
meeting. In response the Airport Commission acted to place the hangar decommissioning 
process on hold for 30 days to allow staff to work with the Cities and tenants to conduct a more 
thorough structural analysis with a focus on safety for Commission review at the April 20 
meeting. The Cities hired Civil Innovations to complete a more detailed structural engineering 
analysis which was scheduled for early April. Staff plan to provide the report to the Commission 
at the April 20 meeting where additional guidance on this issue will be provided. 
 
Remote Tower 
 
During the month of March Searidge Technologies was onsite installing new higher resolution 
cameras and displays in order conduct an FAA supported reevaluation of the system. The goal 
of the test was to determine if new cameras and displays could accurately achieve the updated 
FAA visual requirements for remote towers, which changed from two miles of visibility to three 
miles of visibility from the central camera mast.  
 
This FAA evaluation was completed on Wednesday and Thursday March 29 & 30. Aims 
Community College and Airport staff helped support the testing by providing aircraft and 
ground vehicles which were used as visual targets. The results of the evaluation with the new 
cameras were promising, as the newly installed components did seem to achieve the newlu 
required detection of 3 miles and resulted in positive feedback from the subject matter experts. 
The FAA and Searidge are creating test result documents that will be reviewed together in mid-
April. Once a consensus is met, a plan on moving forward will be developed, and official restart 
of operational testing will resume after the entire system has been upgraded with the new 
components.  
 

010



 
 
Airport Governance: House Bill 23-1156, CO Airport Authority Act 2023 
 
This past month the Airport Authority Act was updated and signed by the Governor. This law 
makes various changes to the public airport authority rules within the State of Colorado, with a 
focus on modernizing the law. The original law had not been updated since it was originally 
signed into law back in the 1960’s and had many requirements that were out of date. This new 
update to the Airport Authority Act is timely since the Cities are working on beginning a 
governance study in the coming months.  
 
Terminal 
 
The design continues to make great progress. The design team is working hard to meet the May 
4 deadline for 95% completion. Contracting work and negotiations between the Design Team 
and Airport/Cities with Hensel Phelps has been progressing during the month of March. The 
goal of having a final contract and guaranteed maximum price for consideration at the May 18 
Airport Commission meeting is on track. The estimated costs are now derived from actual bids 
from hundreds of subcontractors that will be performing the work, and the bottom-line costs 
are with the approved budgets.  
 
The Fort Collins terminal contributions that were approved in March have required readoption 
by the City Council. A publishing error has created an issue where ordinances that were 
approved in March were invalidated. The two additional readings for this contribution will 
occur on April 4 & 18. It is not currently anticipated that the votes will change as a result of this 
issue. 
 
  

011



Airport Operations 
 
During March the airport experienced several snow events. Two equipment failures occurred 
within the events, due to age or internal failure unrelated to the operation of the units. One of 
the runway and taxiway broom vehicles had a hydraulic system failure that required internal 
assistance from the City of Loveland Vehicle Maintenance staff, and the other was a head 
gasket failure on the airport loader. The loader is used for clearing large sections of snow 
mainly on parking aprons and between hangars. Costs for these repairs are approximately 
$15,000 for both, with 90% attributed to the Volvo loader. The loader, acquired in 2007, has 
just over 2,400 hours, and is expected to continue operating once repairs are completed. 
However, parts availability may keep this unit from being fixed for another two months. All 
maintenance on the Airport’s front line snow equipment is conducted in accordance with the 
manufacturer’s recommendations and done by brand specific technicians.  
 

 
 
Airport Events 
 
Despite the lack of an airshow this year the Airport has a full schedule of upcoming events. The 
following list are the confirmed tours and events for the public. As more are scheduled this list 
will be updated. This has been one of the busiest months for staff, an events page on our 
website to provide easy reference for the public will be published once activity dies down. 

• May 30 – June 5 Commemorative Air Force (CAF) “Flying Legends of Victory Tour 2023” 
• June 11-15, June 25-July 1, July 23-29 CSU Drone Training, Airport Tours, & Aims Flights 
• August 12 Aims Aviation Day  
• October 6-7 Colorado State University’s “Colorado Drone Airshow 2023” 

 
 Attachments 
1. Remote Tower Project Report for March from WEPA 
2. Loveland Fire and Rescue Authority ARFF monthly report 
3. Colorado Airport Authority Act 2023, HB 23-1156 
4. News Articles: 

a. New NoCo Airport Terminal One Step Away 
b. Developer Martin Lind Offers hangar for Civil Air Patrol 
c. Remote Tower at Leesburg Executive Set to Close 

012



 
   
March 31, 2023 
 
From:  William E. Payne, P.E. 
To: Colorado Division of Aeronautics 
 
Section A – Remote Air Traffic Control Contract Progress Report #21 

 
Re: Period:  March 1 through March 31, 2023 

 

Remote Tower Implementation

STARS Operational at FNL 11/25/2022 12/15/2022 Local Adaption and Mapping Complete  

Remote Tower System 

        System Upgrade - Tech Refresh In-Progress TBD Ongoing 

Remote Tower Testing

FAA Stop Work Order 10/7/2022 11/11/2022 Vendor Addressing Deficiencies

OVR Ver 2.0 11/4/2022 11/25/2022 OVR Ver 2.0 Delivered to Vendor - 11/25/22

Vendor Response to OVR Ver 2.0 12/2/2022 12/22/2022 Vendor will Comply with OVR 2.0

Vendor Proposed Changes 12/21/2022 1/19/2023 Complete

OVR Ver 2.1 3/4/2023 3/4/2023 Delivered to Vendors

4K Camera and Display Test at FNL 3/27/2023 3/31/2023 Test for Compliance with OVR 2.1 Complete

Evaluate System Upgrades March 2023 3/27/23 FAA Decision Point 

Install Full System Upgrades June 2023 TBD

Phase 1B - Passive Re-testing TBD TBD

Safety Risk Manage Panel TBD TBD FAA Forecast Schedule 1 week duration 

Safety Risk Management Document Signed TBD TBD FAA Forecast Schedule 6 months 

Phase 2 - Active Testing           TBD TBD Subject to FAA Phase 1 SRMD Signatures

Safety Risk Manage Panel TBD TBD

Safety Risk Management Document Signed TBD TBD

Phase 3 - Validation & Verification  TBD TBD Subject to FAA Phase 2 SRMD Signatures

Safety Risk Manage Panel TBD TBD

Safety Risk Management Document Signed TBD TBD

Operational Viability Decision (OVD) TBD TBD

Phase 4 - Post OVD Validation &Verification TBD TBD Subject to FAA Phase 3 SRMD Signatures

Safety Risk Manage Panel TBD TBD

Safety Risk Management Document Signed TBD TBD

Certification/Commissioning TBD TBD

Colorado Remote Tower Project                                                                                             

Activity Status

Note: All dates reflect latest FAA proposed schedule and are subject to change based on FAA SME's ability to travel to FNL

Remarks

Status/Start 

Date 

(Projected)

Activity
Finish Date 

(Projected)

 
 
 
 
 

013



2 
 

Remote Tower Project Narrative: 
 
To demonstrate that the remote tower system can meet the requirements of the latest 
version of the Operational Visual Requirements (OVR) 2.1, Searidge performed a 
demonstration replacing the 1080P and HD displays with 4K cameras and displays the 
week of March 27, 2023. The test configuration consisted of 4-4K cameras mounted on 
the central mast looking toward the approach end of Runway 15 and 4-4K 55” displays. 
This demonstration was run by Searidge with FAA and NATCA as observers. NextGen in 
collaboration with Searidge is preparing a report detailing the results of the demonstration 
activity. This demonstration was less rigorous than the Phase 1 testing, as it was only 
designed to demonstrate the 4K system’s ability to meet the visual acuity requirements 
of OVR 2.1.  
 
The demonstration consisted of aircraft provided and flown by Aims Community College 
as test subjects performing air and ground operations. The airborne operations included 
flying a standard traffic pattern and approaches to Runway 15 beginning at 5 nm to verify 
that a controller could detect an aircraft at 3 nm from the runway threshold with a 
probability of detection of 50%. The ground-based operations centered around a 
controller’s ability to detect and follow an airport ops vehicle at the threshold of Runway 
15, in or near the Runway Safety Area and on the airport perimeter road.   
 
The subject matter experts from NextGen, AJT and NATCA indicated verbally that the 
system appears to meet OVR 2.1. There were some stitching issues that were observed 
which are primarily due to not using the final processors and video cards and the fact of 
the temporary nature of the test setup. It is anticipated that these issues will be resolved 
when the final configuration is installed.   
 
Of the two items necessary for system certification, OVR 2.1 and System Design Approval 
(SDA), the SDA documentation will be the most challenging for Searidge. That being said, 
Technical Operations (AJW) leadership has indicated a willingness to assist Searidge in 
providing this documentation. It will be up to Searidge to take advantage of this offer. 
Approval of the documents will take significant time as review and comment is an iterative 
process and review will be subject to AJW’s work schedule.  
 
As a point of reference, the remote tower system at the Leesburg Executive Airport (JYO) 
that the FAA has indicated will be shut down in June is due to the vendor not pursuing 
the final steps of providing the SDA documentation necessary to fully certify the system 
at JYO.   
 
Searidge will be seeking an extension, if not complete removal, of the Stop Work Order 
before moving forward with installation of the fully upgraded system. There will be some 
funding issues that will need to be addressed. It needs to be pointed out that the remote 
tower system at FNL was approved, installed and tested before the first OVR or Remote 
Tower Advisory Circular (AC) was published. Also, a Safety Risk Management Panel 
(SRMP) approved moving forward with Phase 1 Passive testing prior to publication of 
these two documents.  
 
 

014



3 

A Congressional Delegation letter has been prepared describing the status of the 
Colorado Remote Tower Project and expressing support for its continuation. The letter 
will be sent to Senator Hickenlooper’s office to be circulated to the entire Colorado 
Delegation. The letter is being reviewed by CDOT. 

Many thanks to Aims Community College and the Airport Staff for their help with this 
demonstration. Their willingness to provide the aircraft, pilots and airport vehicles in 
support of the test was a major factor in the success of the demonstration.    

Proposed Remote Tower Testing Phases: 

  

           

 TBD*  TBD*   TBD*          TBD*  

Projected Start Date 

*Dependent on local resources’ ability to travel to FNL and COVID status

Schedule Note: This status is based on the latest proposed schedule and is 
dependent upon availability of FAA resources to staff the remote 
tower and support the Phase 1 SRMP.  

Note: The FAA has replaced the term Initial Operating Capability (IOC) with 
Operational Viability Decision (OVD). This may change again as the 
terminology of remote tower certification is in flux.  

Operational 
Viability 
Decision 

(OVD) 

Phase 1 B 

In-person Re-
test (Passive) 

Phase 2 
Operational 

Testing (Active) 

Phase 3 
Validation & 
Verification 

(V&V)      

Phase 4 
Certification 

System Design 
Approval 

(SDA)

Phase 1 
SRMP 
TBD     

015



2023

Phase 2             
Active Testing

TBD

Phase 2               
Testing 
(Active) 

Phase 3  
Validation & 
Verification

TBD

Colorado Remote Tower Timeline
(Draft)

Abbreviation Key
SRMP - Safety Risk Management Panel
SRMD – Safety Risk Management Document
STARS – Standard Terminal Automation Replacement System
SDA – System Design Approval (System Type Certification) 
Ops – Operations
TBD – To Be Determined
OVD – Operational Viability Decision
V&V – Validation & Verification

Complete

Upcoming activity

Critical Path Item

220° Camera Array

220° Camera Array

360° Camera Array

2024

Phase 1 
SRMD  

Signatures 

Phase 1B               
Test 

Complete 
TBD

Phase 1B              
SRMP TBD

Phase 1B               
Report

Upgraded 
System  

Demonstration 
March 27, 2023 

Full System 
Upgrade 
Complete 
June 2023

System Design Approval Process 

Phase 2              
SRMP 
TBD

Operational 
Viability 
Decision 

(OVD) 

Phase 2 
SRMD  

Signatures 

Phase 1B                
Re-Test 

(Passive) 

Full System 
Upgrade InstalledVendor  Upgrade 

Testing

016



Happy April!  

ARFF: 
Continued work on accreditation documents
Continued ARFF driver training for all ARFF members
All of the ARFF apparatus are going into VM for their annual maintenance

FAA Annual Inspection:   Has been moved to May 22-24th.   Gina will
be assigned to cover the ARFF portion of the inspection on May 23rd.

Airport:
Airport Commission meeting will be held on April 20th, 3:30-5:00pm at the Fire
Station conference room
Please see the www.flynoco.com website for all airport commission updates
involving the upcoming terminal construction!

***Scheduled Air-Carrier Flights: 
The Honor Flight is being hosted from our very own Northern Colorado Regional
Airport on April 30, with a return flight on May 1!  More information on events to
come.
Sun Country Casino flights:

April 14
April 18
May 27
May 31

Flying Legends of Victory Tour  May 30-June 4!  See attached flyer!

017

http://www.flynoco.com/





Thank You To Our Sponsors:


Northern Colorado Regional Airport  
Tuesday May 30 - Sunday June 4 


Location: 4825 Earhart Road
Loveland, CO


DONATIONS KEEP
US FLYING!


Non-Profit 501(c)(3) 
educational organization. 


Visit www.azcaf.org


B-17 & B-25 Bomber Tours and Rides


Plane
Tours


Book a 
Ride


Rides on Fri - Sun
Book Online at www.FlyingLegendsTour.com 
Seats are limited! Weather or other factors beyond 
our control may affect ride availability. 
 COST B-25 $590 Front Jump Seat


$375 Waist Gunner Seat 
B-17 $850 Bombardier/Navigator Seat


$475 Radio Room/Waist Gunner Seat


Tue-Thu 9am-5pm, Fri-Sun 2-6pm 
$15 per person, $30 per family


Educate - Inspire - Honor
www.FlyingLegendsTour.com


©2022 Commemorative Air Force Airbase Arizona, Flying Legends of Victory Tour. Rides subject to change/cancellation from weather, mechanical/other factors.  Waiver must be signed.











018



Page 1 
February 14, 2023  HB 23-1156   

 

 

 Legislative Council Staff 
Nonpartisan Services for Colorado’s Legislature 

  

Fiscal Note  
  

 

Drafting Number: 
Prime Sponsors: 

LLS 23-0746  
Rep. Taggart 
  

Date: 
Bill Status: 

Fiscal Analyst: 

February 14, 2023 
House Trans. & Local Govt. 
Colin Gaiser | 303-866-2677 
colin.gaiser@coleg.gov  

Bill Topic: PUBLIC AIRPORT AUTHORITY ACT MODERNIZATION  

Summary of  
Fiscal Impact: 

☐ State Revenue 
☒ State Expenditure 
☐ State Transfer 

☐ TABOR Refund 
☒ Local Government 
☐ Statutory Public Entity 

 

The bill makes various changes to the public airport authority code. Beginning in 
FY 2023-24, the bill may affect state and local government workload and local 
expenditures on an ongoing basis. 

Appropriation 
Summary: 

No appropriation is required.  

Fiscal Note 
Status: 

The fiscal note reflects the introduced bill. 

Summary of Legislation 

This bill amends the public airport authority (PAA) code in a number of ways.   Significantly, this bill: 

 

 requires a local government that terminates a PAA to assume all outstanding financial and 

contractual obligations, assume the operations and maintenance of the airport, and take full fee 

title ownership; 

 clarifies that members of a PAA board of commissioners do not receive compensation; 

 requires a majority vote of a PAA board of commissioners to authorize expenditures greater than 

$250,000;  

 authorizes a PAA to remove hazards and encroachments, impose fees on airport users, and 

regulate commercial activities conducted within a PAA; 

 allows a PAA to request a county or municipality to levy a tax for the authority’s benefit; 

 clarifies that tenants or users of a PAA airport are not entitled to the tax exemptions that apply to 

airport authorities; and 

 modifies the definition of “local government official” to include a member of the board of 

commissioners of any PAA.   

 

019



Page 2 
February 14, 2023  HB 23-1156   

 

 

State Expenditures 

The Department of Local Affairs may have a workload impact under the bill.  Currently, PAAs are 

required terminations with the Division of Local Government. This bill removes that requirement, 

which will require the division to update its inventory of local governments without that notification. 

Local Government 

Beginning in FY 2023-24, the bill may increase revenue to PAAs that request a tax be levied on a county 

or municipality. The bill also eliminates any current expenditure involving compensation of PAA 

board members. In the event that a county or municipality terminates a PAA, that county or 

municipality could see an increase in workload and expenditure as a result of taking on the debt, 

obligations, and fee title of a PAA.  

Effective Date 

The bill takes effect 90 days following adjournment of the General Assembly sine die, assuming no 

referendum petition is filed. 

State and Local Government Contacts 

Counties  Judicial        Local Affairs 

Law   Municipalities   Special Districts  

Transportation  Information Technology 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
The revenue and expenditure impacts in this fiscal note represent changes from current law under the bill for each 
fiscal year.  For additional information about fiscal notes, please visit:  leg.colorado.gov/fiscalnotes. 

020

https://leg.colorado.gov/fiscalnotes


HOUSE BILL 23-1156

BY REPRESENTATIVE(S) Taggart and Young, Bockenfeld, Catlin,
English, Lindsay, Lindstedt, Lynch, Marshall, Michaelson Jenet, Ricks,
Soper, Titone, Valdez, Weinberg, Wilson, McCluskie;
also SENATOR(S) Kolker and Pelton R., Exum, Pelton B., Priola, Roberts,
Simpson, Smallwood, Winter F.

CONCERNING MODERNIZATION OF THE PUBLIC AIRPORT AUTHORITY ACT.

Be it enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Colorado:

SECTION 1.  In Colorado Revised Statutes, 41-3-103, add (12.5)
as follows:

41-3-103.  Definitions. As used in this article ARTICLE 3, unless the
context otherwise requires:

(12.5)  "INFLATION" MEANS THE ANNUAL PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN
THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, BUREAU OF LABOR STATISTICS,
CONSUMER PRICE INDEX FOR DENVER-AURORA-LAKEWOOD FOR ALL ITEMS
PAID BY ALL URBAN CONSUMERS, OR ITS SUCCESSOR INDEX.

SECTION 2.  In Colorado Revised Statutes, 41-3-104, amend (6)

NOTE:  This bill has been prepared for the signatures of the appropriate legislative
officers and the Governor.  To determine whether the Governor has signed the bill
or taken other action on it, please consult the legislative status sheet, the legislative
history, or the Session Laws.

________
Capital letters or bold & italic numbers indicate new material added to existing law; dashes
through words or numbers indicate deletions from existing law and such material is not part of
the act.

021



as follows:

41-3-104.  Creation of authorities. (6)  Any authority created
pursuant to the provisions of this article shall cease to exist upon the filing
with the director of the division of local government of a certified resolution
of each county or municipality composing the authority requesting the
termination of such authority; but adequate provisions shall be made for the
payment of the outstanding bonds of the authority A COUNTY, A
MUNICIPALITY, OR A COMBINATION MAY ADOPT A RESOLUTION TERMINATING
THE EXISTENCE OF AN AUTHORITY. A TERMINATING RESOLUTION MUST
REQUIRE THE COUNTY, THE MUNICIPALITY, OR THE COMBINATION
TERMINATING THE AUTHORITY TO:

(a)  ASSUME THE REPAYMENT OBLIGATIONS OF ANY OF THE
AUTHORITY'S OUTSTANDING BONDS;

(b)  ASSUME THE OBLIGATIONS OF ANY OF THE AUTHORITY'S
OUTSTANDING CONTRACTS ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO THIS ARTICLE 3;

(c)  ASSUME THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE AIRPORT
THAT THE AUTHORITY WAS AUTHORIZED TO OPERATE AND MAINTAIN; AND

(d)  RECEIVE AND HOLD TITLE TO THE REAL PROPERTY ON WHICH THE
AIRPORT IS LOCATED AND THAT THE AUTHORITY IS AUTHORIZED TO OPERATE
AND MAINTAIN.

SECTION 3.  In Colorado Revised Statutes, 41-3-105, amend (2),
(3), (5)(a), (5)(d), and (5)(h) as follows:

41-3-105.  Board of commissioners. (2)  The board of
commissioners of an authority created by the formation of a combination
shall consist CONSISTS of at least five members, but no more than nine
members, representing the counties or municipalities participating in the
combination. The authorizing resolution, filed with the director of the
division of local government in the department of local affairs, as provided
in PURSUANT TO section 41-3-104 (1), shall MUST contain a provision as to
the representation of the counties and municipalities participating in the
combination. The members of the board of an authority created by a
combination shall MUST be appointed by resolution of the governing boards
of the counties or municipalities that are members of the combination, WITH

PAGE 2-HOUSE BILL 23-1156

022



the initial appointments, at the election of such municipality or county, to
be made by the authorizing resolution filed with the director of said THE
division OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT. If the county in which the airport is to be
located is not a member of the combination, then the member or members,
if any, to which such THE county is entitled shall be appointed by the board
of county commissioners of such THE county. The board created by the
independent action of a county shall consist CONSISTS of five members who
shall be appointed by the board of county commissioners of the county, and
initial appointments to such THE board, at the election of the board of
county commissioners, may be made in the authorizing resolution filed with
the director of said THE division OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT. Board members
from municipalities and counties in this state shall MUST be taxpaying
electors, as defined in section 1-1-104 (49), C.R.S., at the time of their
appointment residing AND MUST RESIDE in the municipality or county from
which appointed. After an authority is organized by the formation of a
combination, the inclusion of additional counties or municipalities shall
entitle ENTITLES the included municipalities or counties to representation on
the same basis as other counties or municipalities. Each member of the
board may receive as compensation for his or her services a sum not in
excess of sixty dollars per year. No member of the board shall receive any
compensation as an employee of the authority or otherwise, other than that
provided in this section, and A MEMBER OF THE BOARD DOES NOT RECEIVE
COMPENSATION FOR THE MEMBER'S SERVICE ON THE BOARD. No member of
the board shall be interested in any contract or transaction with the authority
except in his or her THE MEMBER'S official respective capacity. MEMBERS
OF THE BOARD ARE SUBJECT TO THE STANDARDS OF CONDUCT FOR LOCAL
GOVERNMENT OFFICIALS SPECIFIED IN ARTICLE 18 OF TITLE 24.

(3)  The term of each member shall be for IS four years; except that
the terms of the members of the first board shall be ARE adjusted so that the
terms of one-half of the members shall expire AFTER two years thereafter.
At the first meeting of the board of a newly formed authority the
commissioners shall determine by lot which members shall serve for
two-year terms and which shall serve for four-year terms. At the expiration
of the term of any commissioner, a new appointment shall be made by the
appropriate governing board, and any member, INCLUDING A MEMBER
APPOINTED TO FILL A VACANCY, may be appointed to succeed himself TO
SERVE A SUCCESSIVE TERM.

(5)  The board, in addition to any other powers conferred by this

PAGE 3-HOUSE BILL 23-1156

023



article, has the following powers:

(a)  To fix the time and place at which its regular meetings shall be
ARE held, which place may be located within any municipality or county
forming a part of an authority created by a combination, or within the
county independently creating such authority; and shall provide for the
calling and holding of special meetings to organize, adopt bylaws and rules
of procedure, and select a chairman CHAIRPERSON and pro tem chairman.
Notice of time and place designated for all regular meetings shall be posted
in at least three places within each municipality and county forming a part
of the authority if created by the formation of a combination, and, in
addition, one such notice shall be posted, irrespective of the procedure
under which the authority is created, in the county courthouse in the county
wherein the airport is located and in the county creating the authority. Such
notices shall remain posted and shall be changed in the event that the time
or place of such regular meeting is changed. Special meetings
CHAIRPERSON. A SPECIAL MEETING may be called by any officer or member
of the board by informing the other members of the date, time, and place of
such THE SPECIAL meeting and the purpose for which it is called. and by
posting as provided in this paragraph (a) at least three days previous to said
meeting. All business of the board shall be conducted only during such
regular or special meetings, and all of such meetings shall be open to the
public ALL REGULAR OR SPECIAL MEETINGS ARE SUBJECT TO THE OPEN
MEETING AND NOTICE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 24-6-402.

(d)  To transact business only if a quorum of sixty percent FIFTY
PERCENT of the board is present at a regular or special meeting. but all THE
BOARD MAY TAKE ACTION OR APPROVE ANY MATTER BY A MAJORITY OF A
QUORUM; EXCEPT THAT ALL questions involving the inclusion or exclusion
of a municipality or county in or from the authority or authorizing any
expenditures in excess of ten thousand dollars shall require the affirmative
majority vote of the board, and all other questions shall require the
affirmative vote of not less than fifty percent of the board TWO HUNDRED
FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS MUST BE APPROVED BY A MAJORITY OF THE
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD. BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2029, AND EVERY FIVE
YEARS THEREAFTER, THE TWO HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLAR FIGURE
SPECIFIED IN THIS SUBSECTION IS ADJUSTED FOR INFLATION.

(h)  To prescribe a method of auditing and allowing or rejecting
claims and demands and a method for the letting of contracts on a fair and

PAGE 4-HOUSE BILL 23-1156

024



competitive basis for the construction of works, structures, or equipment or
the performance or furnishing of labor, materials, or supplies as required for
the carrying out of any of the purposes of this article; but, in cases where the
amount involved is fifty thousand dollars or more, the board shall provide
for the letting of contracts to the lowest responsible bidder after publication
in the official newspaper of notices inviting bids, subject to the right of said
board to reject any and all proposals and to readvertise for bids as provided
in this section. The procedures above described shall be subject to the
approval of the board of county commissioners of any county independently
creating an authority under the provisions of this article, and any action on
the part of the board to raise or increase revenue from any source
whatsoever for the purposes of the authority shall also be subject to such
approval. The board shall be bound to carry out any action requested by the
board of county commissioners PROCURING CONTRACTS TO CARRY OUT THE
AUTHORITY'S PURPOSES PURSUANT TO THIS ARTICLE 3, INCLUDING
CONTRACTS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF WORKS AND STRUCTURES,
EQUIPMENT, THE PERFORMANCE OF LABOR OR SERVICES, OR THE FURNISHING
OF SUPPLIES OR MATERIALS. THE BOARD SHALL COMPLY WITH THE
REQUIREMENTS OF ARTICLE 91 OF TITLE 24 WHEN PROCURING AND ENTERING
INTO A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT. FOR ANY CONTRACT INVOLVING FEDERAL
FUNDS, THE BOARD SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE FEDERAL
STATUTES, REGULATIONS, GUIDELINES, AND POLICIES. FOR ALL CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS AND THE PURCHASE OF NEW VEHICLES AND NEW
EQUIPMENT, THE BOARD SHALL:

(I)  SOLICIT THE CONTRACT BY AN INVITATION FOR BIDS. AN
INVITATION FOR BIDS MAY INCLUDE CRITERIA FOR THE BOARD TO DETERMINE
ACCEPTABILITY OF A BID, INCLUDING INSPECTION, TESTING, QUALITY,
WORKMANSHIP, DELIVERY, AND SUITABILITY FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.
ANY CRITERIA THAT THE BOARD CONSIDERS IN EVALUATING THE BID MUST
BE OBJECTIVELY MEASURABLE.

(II)  INCLUDE WITHIN AN INVITATION FOR BIDS A PURCHASE
DESCRIPTION AND ALL CONTRACTUAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS APPLICABLE
TO THE PROCUREMENT;

(III)  PROVIDE ADEQUATE PUBLIC NOTICE OF THE INVITATION FOR
BIDS WITHIN A REASONABLE TIME PRIOR TO THE TIME THE BOARD SETS FOR
THE OPENING OF BIDS;

PAGE 5-HOUSE BILL 23-1156

025



(IV)  RECORD THE AMOUNT OF EACH BID AND THE NAME OF EACH
BIDDER, WHICH THE BOARD SHALL KEEP OPEN FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION;

(V)  ALLOW THE WITHDRAWAL OF AN INADVERTENTLY ERRONEOUS
BID BEFORE THE BID IS AWARDED IF THE BIDDER SUBMITS DOCUMENTARY
EVIDENCE THAT CLEARLY AND CONVINCINGLY DEMONSTRATES AN ERROR
WAS MADE;

(VI)  AWARD THE CONTRACT WITH REASONABLE PROMPTNESS TO THE
LOW RESPONSIBLE BIDDER WHOSE BID MEETS THE CRITERIA SET FORTH IN
THE INVITATION FOR BIDS; EXCEPT THAT THE BOARD SHALL RESOLVE ANY
TIE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 24-103-902; AND

(VII)  MAINTAIN FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION ALL BIDS AND BID
DOCUMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTIONS 24-72-203 AND 24-72-204.

SECTION 4.  In Colorado Revised Statutes, 41-3-106, amend
(1)(d), (1)(h), (1)(k), and (1)(l); and add (1)(m) and (1)(n) as follows:

41-3-106.  Powers of an authority. (1)  An authority has the
following powers:

(d)  To enter into contracts and agreements affecting the affairs of
the authority, including, but not limited to, contracts with the United States,
the state of Colorado, and an adjoining state, if a combination includes a
municipality or county from the adjoining state, AND ANY COUNTY OR
MUNICIPALITY FROM WHICH THE AUTHORITY ORIGINATED;

(h)  To regulate, when acting singly, or by agreement, when acting
jointly with any other municipality or county, the receiving, deposit, and
removal and the embarkation of passengers or property to or from the
airport; to regulate or prohibit any airport hazard to exact and require
charges, fees, and rentals, together with a lien to enforce the payment IN THE
SAME MANNER THAT A COUNTY OR MUNICIPALITY IS AUTHORIZED TO
REMOVE A HAZARD PURSUANT TO SECTION 41-4-108 OR AN ENCROACHMENT
PURSUANT TO SECTION 41-4-109; TO IMPOSE CHARGES, FEES, AND RENTALS
ON USERS OF THE AUTHORITY'S AIRPORT AND FACILITIES TO DEFRAY THE
COSTS OF OPERATING, MAINTAINING, AND IMPROVING THE AIRPORT; to lease
or assign for operation such ANY space, or area, appurtenances, appliances,
or other conveniences necessary or useful in connection therewith WITH

PAGE 6-HOUSE BILL 23-1156

026



OPERATING THE AIRPORT; EXCEPT AS RELATED TO THE PRICE, ROUTE, OR
SERVICE OF AN AIR CARRIER, TO REGULATE A COMMERCIAL ACTIVITY THAT
ANY PERSON CONDUCTS AT AN AIRPORT; to own and operate aircraft; to
employ pilots; to provide rules and regulations governing the use of such
THE airport and facilities and the use of other property and means of
transportation within or over said THE airport, landing field, and navigation
facilities; to perform any duties necessary or consistent with the regulation
of air traffic; to enter into contracts or otherwise cooperate with the United
States, the state, an adjoining state, if a combination includes a municipality
or county from the adjoining state, or other public or private agencies; and
to exercise such powers as may be required or consistent with the promotion
of aeronautics and the furtherance of commerce and navigation by air;

(k)  To construct and maintain works and establish and maintain
facilities, within or without the boundaries of the municipalities or counties
constituting members of the authority or within or without the boundaries
of the county independently creating an authority pursuant to the provisions
of this article, across or along any public street or highway or in, upon,
under, or over any vacant public lands, which public lands are now, or may
become, the property of the state; but the authority shall promptly restore
any such street or highway to its former state of usefulness as nearly as may
be and shall not use the same STREET OR HIGHWAY in such manner as to
completely or unnecessarily impair the usefulness thereof OF THE STREET OR
HIGHWAY. WHEN EXERCISING ITS POWER PURSUANT TO THIS SUBSECTION
(1)(k), AN AUTHORITY SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL ZONING
AND BUILDING REGULATIONS, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT THAT ANY ZONING OR
BUILDING REGULATIONS ARE PREEMPTED BY FEDERAL LAW, AND ALL
GUIDELINES AND REGULATIONS OF THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION, FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION.

(l)  To invest any surplus money in the treasury of the authority,
including such money in any sinking or trust fund established for the
purpose of retiring bonds at or prior to maturity not required for the
immediate necessities of the authority, IN ANY LOCAL GOVERNMENT
INVESTMENT POOL TRUST FUND PURSUANT TO PART 7 OF ARTICLE 75 OF
TITLE 24, OR in securities meeting the investment requirements established
in part 6 of article 75 of title 24. C.R.S. Such ANY investment IN SECURITIES
may be made by direct purchase of any issue of such securities, or part
thereof, at the original sale of the same THE SECURITIES or by the subsequent
purchase of such THE securities. Any securities thus purchased and held BY

PAGE 7-HOUSE BILL 23-1156

027



AN AUTHORITY may be sold, unless such THE sale is prohibited by any
agreement under which the same THE SECURITIES have been or shall WILL
be deposited and the proceeds thereof OF THE SECURITIES reinvested in
securities as provided in this paragraph (l). Sales SUBSECTION (1)(l). THE
SALE of any securities thus purchased and held shall BY THE AUTHORITY
MUST be made at such time so that A TIME WHEN the proceeds may be
applied to the purposes for which THAT the money with which the securities
were originally purchased was placed in the treasury of the authority.

(m)  NOTWITHSTANDING SUBSECTION (1)(e) OF THIS SECTION, TO
REQUEST THAT A COUNTY OR MUNICIPALITY IN WHICH THE AUTHORITY IS
LOCATED LEVY A TAX WITHIN THAT COUNTY OR MUNICIPALITY FOR THE
AUTHORITY'S BENEFIT THAT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE COLORADO
CONSTITUTION AND THE POWER OF A COUNTY OR MUNICIPALITY TO LEVY A
TAX; AND

(n)  TO REQUEST, CONSISTENT WITH ALL APPLICABLE GUIDELINES AND
REGULATIONS OF THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION,
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION, THAT A COUNTY OR MUNICIPALITY
ADOPT OR MODIFY EXISTING ZONING REGULATIONS REGARDING:

(I)  THE PREVENTION OR ELIMINATION OF HAZARDS TO AIR
NAVIGATION;

(II)  THE INSTALLATION, OPERATION, AND MAINTENANCE OF
NAVIGATIONAL MARKING AND LIGHTING ON STRUCTURES OR TREES IN AREAS
SURROUNDING THE AIRPORT AN AUTHORITY OPERATES;

(III)  COMPATIBLE LAND USES IN AREAS IMMEDIATELY SURROUNDING
THE AIRPORT THE AUTHORITY OPERATES; OR

(IV)  THE CRITERIA FOR AREAS SURROUNDING AIRPORTS SPECIFIED
IN SECTION 24-65.1-202 (5)(a).

SECTION 5.  In Colorado Revised Statutes, amend 41-3-107 as
follows:

41-3-107.  Legal status of authorities - tax exemption. (1)  An
authority created pursuant to this article is hereby declared to be a political
subdivision of the state, exercising essential governmental powers for a

PAGE 8-HOUSE BILL 23-1156

028



public purpose. The general assembly, therefore, finds:

(a)  That no authority, or county independently creating an authority,
shall be IS required to pay any general ad valorem taxes upon an airport or
any facilities connected therewith located within the state nor upon the
interest of the authority therein;

(b)  That bonds issued under this article and the income therefrom
shall be ARE free and exempt from taxation by the state, or any political
subdivision of the state, with the exception of transfer, inheritance, and
estate taxes; AND

(c)  THE TAX EXEMPTIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS SECTION DO NOT APPLY
TO ANY TENANTS OR USERS OF THE AIRPORT THAT AN AUTHORITY OPERATES.

SECTION 6.  In Colorado Revised Statutes, 24-18-102, amend (6)
as follows:

24-18-102.  Definitions. As used in this part 1, unless the context
otherwise requires:

(6)  "Local government official" means an elected or appointed
official of a local government, but does not include an employee of a local
government. LOCAL GOVERNMENT OFFICIAL INCLUDES A MEMBER OF THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF ANY AIRPORT AUTHORITY CREATED PURSUANT
TO ARTICLE 3 OF TITLE 41.

SECTION 7.  Act subject to petition - effective date. This act
takes effect at 12:01 a.m. on the day following the expiration of the
ninety-day period after final adjournment of the general assembly; except
that, if a referendum petition is filed pursuant to section 1 (3) of article V
of the state constitution against this act or an item, section, or part of this act
within such period, then the act, item, section, or part will not take effect
unless approved by the people at the general election to be held in

PAGE 9-HOUSE BILL 23-1156

029



November 2024 and, in such case, will take effect on the date of the official
declaration of the vote thereon by the governor.

____________________________ ____________________________
Julie McCluskie Steve Fenberg
SPEAKER OF THE HOUSE PRESIDENT OF
OF REPRESENTATIVES THE SENATE

____________________________  ____________________________
Robin Jones Cindi L. Markwell
CHIEF CLERK OF THE HOUSE SECRETARY OF
OF REPRESENTATIVES THE SENATE

            APPROVED________________________________________
                                                        (Date and Time)

                              _________________________________________
                             Jared S. Polis
                             GOVERNOR OF THE STATE OF COLORADO

PAGE 10-HOUSE BILL 23-1156

030



   

GOVERNMENT & POLITICS MARCH 1, 2023 7:08:24 AM

New NoCo airport terminal one

step away

Dallas Heltzell

A rendering shows an early version of the design for the proposed Northern Colorado

Regional Airport terminal. Source: NoCo Airport Commission documents

031

https://bizwest.com/
https://www.facebook.com/bizwestmedia
https://twitter.com/bizwestmedia
https://www.linkedin.com/company/boulder-county-business-report
https://www.instagram.com/bizwestmedia/
https://breakingground.biz/
https://databank.bizwest.com/
https://econowatch.com/
https://bizwest.com/lists/
https://bizwest.com/login/?subscription=show
https://bizwest.com/login/?login=processLogout


FORT COLLINS – Construction on a new terminal for Northern Colorado Regional Airport is

likely to begin this summer, assuming the Fort Collins City Council gives �nal approval

Tuesday to a $1 million city contribution to �ll a funding gap.

Although scaled back from its original $31 million design to an estimate of $25 million, the

19,000-square-foot terminal still is being designed to include two airline gates — in hopes

that it can once again lure scheduled commercial airline service, which it lost in 2019 when

Allegiant Travel Co. (Nasdaq: ALGT) canceled its routes from the airport to Mesa, Arizona,

and Las Vegas, and last June, when Avelo Airlines suspended �ights to Las Vegas and

Burbank, California, after just eight months.

Airport o�cials are eager to get the construction under way, hoping for completion by late

2024, but Fort Collins City Manager Kelly DiMartino warned them at a Feb. 16 airport

commission meeting, “Don’t get ahead of the March 7 council approval.”

The existing terminal, built in 1989, was meant to be temporary, and the need for

expansion became evident when modern needs for security lines required more space

than is available. The redesign process began in January 2021, and airport o�cials have

said it’s 60% complete but a bit more design work is needed before construction can begin.

The airport has access to $21 million in federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic

Security (CARES) Act money — which has to be used by July 2024 or else the feds need to

be paid back — and the airport has reserves of $2 million. That left a $2 million gap to be

covered by the airport’s owners, the cities of Loveland and Fort Collins.

The Loveland City Council voted unanimously to pay its $1 million match, but Fort Collins

council members balked, insisting on a series of performance metrics, some of which

carried monetary penalties if not met. However, at its Feb. 21 meeting, Fort Collins council

members dropped the repayments from the conditions after Mayor Jeni Arndt, who also

sits on the airport commission, pushed back.

The ordinance the Fort Collins council was considering included this provision:

“If for any calendar year from 2024 and 2027 the city is obligated under its current airport

agreement with Loveland to pay its share of the airport’s operation and maintenance

costs, the city shall be entitled to a credit of up to $50,000 as a set-o� to that obligation for

each such year and the city of Loveland shall pay any shortfall resulting from the credit; (2)

if any of the performance indicators for Silver LEED, public art commitment, building

carbon footprint, and enhanced access are not achieved by Sept. 30, 2024, the city shall be

repaid $150,000 of the capital contribution for each performance indicator not timely

achieved; (3) if the airport’s annual outbound passengers served by air and bus are not

33,000 or more passengers for the calendar year 2027, the city shall be repaid $200,000.”

Those terms would have had to be negotiated with the city of Loveland and included in a032



new intergovernmental agreement, an idea that left the Fort Collins mayor uncomfortable.

Arndt told BizWest on Tuesday that the repayment provision made no sense because both cities jointly 
own the airport and “we’re giving this to ourselves.” And at the Feb. 21 meeting, at which the council 
eventually approved the $1 million outlay on first reading, she asked members to look at the provision 
from Loveland’s point of view.

“I have a fundamental question of how you can share half of ownership of something and try to force the 
other 50% to pay you back if certain metrics aren’t met,” she said.

Council member Kelly Ohlson was the lone “no” vote in the council’s 5-1 first-reading approval, noting 
that he disagreed with the airport’s co-ownership arrangement as well as how the facility is governed.

One Fort Collins resident who also was left uncomfortable with the arrangement forwarded to BizWest 
some emailed responses he received from airport manager Jason Licon, including his question about the 
wisdom of building a terminal without an airline tenant.

“The Fort Collins based Landline Co. currently utilizes the terminal, providing ground-based 
transportation services to and from Denver International Airport offering nine roundtrips daily,” Licon 
wrote. “Demand forecasts indicate that air service is something that is a sustainable option if adequate 
infrastructure is available to support it. The vision for the airport under the current dual-city ownership 
model is to provide more ability for the region to directly benefit from the airport to serve as a multi-
modal travel hub.

“The new terminal will replace existing infrastructure that is highly inefficient and costly to operate and 
maintain since it consists of temporary modular facilities,” Licon wrote. “Air service also provides a 
strategic advantage since most federal funding is provided to airports with commercial air service. The 
terminal is designed to enhance this federal financial support that is provided directly through taxes and 
fees on aviation users.”

033

https://bizwest.com/2023/02/17/foco-council-may-close-gap-on-airport-terminal-funding/
https://bizwest.com/2022/11/28/landline-to-more-than-double-shuttle-trips-between-noco-airport-dia/
https://bizwest.com/2022/08/31/certification-of-remote-tower-at-noco-airport-still-years-away/
https://www.facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=https%3A%2F%2Fbizwest.com%2F2023%2F03%2F01%2Fnew-noco-airport-terminal-one-step-away%2F&t=New+NoCo+airport+terminal+one+step+away+%26lt%3Bi+class%3D%5C%26%23039%3Bfa-light+fa-key+fogg-paywall%5C%26%23039%3B%26gt%3B%26lt%3B%2Fi%26gt%3B
https://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&ro=true&trk=EasySocialShareButtons&title=New+NoCo+airport+terminal+one+step+away+%26lt%3Bi+class%3D%5C%26%23039%3Bfa-light+fa-key+fogg-paywall%5C%26%23039%3B%26gt%3B%26lt%3B%2Fi%26gt%3B&url=https%3A%2F%2Fbizwest.com%2F2023%2F03%2F01%2Fnew-noco-airport-terminal-one-step-away%2F
mailto:?subject=New%20NoCo%20airport%20terminal%20one%20step%20away%20%26lt%3Bi%20class%3D%27fa-light%20fa-key%20fogg-paywall%27%26gt%3B%26lt%3B%2Fi%26gt%3B&body=https%3A%2F%2Fbizwest.com%2F2023%2F03%2F01%2Fnew-noco-airport-terminal-one-step-away%2F
http://bizwest.advertserve.com/servlet/click/zone?zid=3&cid=18&mid=677&pid=0&sid=25&uuid=a2ea70d526fd082b62cfe1a739e8c6ce&ip=129.19.3.7&default=false&random=40671913&timestamp=20230302132526&test=false&resolution=1920x929&contextual=true&refresh_count=1&referrer=https%3A%2F%2Fbizwest.com%2F2023%2F03%2F01%2Fnew-noco-airport-terminal-one-step-away%2F&redirect=https%3A%2F%2Finbank.com%2Fbusiness-banking%2Fbusiness-concierge-team%2F%3Futm_medium%3Ddisplay%26utm_source%3Dbizwest%26utm_campaign%3Dq1


3/10/23, 1:40 PM Developer Martin Lind offers hangar for Civil Air Patrol aircraft

https://www.coloradoan.com/story/news/local/2023/03/10/developer-martin-lind-offers-hangar-for-civil-air-patrol-aircraft/69990877007/ 1/2

LOCAL

Windsor developer offers home for Civil
Air Patrol aircraft when airport's hangars
are razed

Published 5:00 a.m. MT March 10, 2023

Larimer County's Civil Air Patrol squadron, which provides air support for search and rescue,
firefighting and other emergency services, has found a new home for its Cessna 182 airplane
beyond May 1, when it will have to leave its hangar at Northern Colorado Regional Airport in
Loveland.

Water Valley Co. President Martin Lind this week offered free hangar space to CAP at his
Discovery Air project adjacent to the Loveland airport.

Lind wrote in a letter to CAP Maj. Mike Fassi that he couldn't identify the exact location yet
because it is nearing capacity at Discovery's Torrey's Peaks hangar, "but I will assure you that
your Patrol can remain at our airport until this mess with the eviction is solved."

Lind, a frequent critic of the airport and its management, said he was "astonished" to hear
CAP was being evicted "without notice going into the wildfire season and just felt I need to
step up and make a difference."

Civil Air Patrol and owners of 57 other planes hangared at the Loveland airport were notified
recently that their hangar leases will be canceled in May or October due to structural issues
with the aging buildings. The notifications leave dozens of private aircraft owners with
nowhere to house their planes if a solution is not found before the end of their leases.

After hearing protests from dozens of aircraft owners, the Northern Colorado Airport
Commission, made up of representatives from the cities of Fort Collins and Loveland, which
co-own the airport, asked the owners to come up with viable options for replacing the airport
hangars. They have until the commission's April meeting to present alternatives.

Pat Ferrier

Fort Collins Coloradoan

034

https://www.coloradoan.com/
https://thompsonvalley.cap.gov/about/tvcs
https://www.coloradoan.com/story/money/real-estate/2023/03/06/plans-to-raze-hangars-at-northern-colorad-regional-airport-rankle-plane-owners/69957904007/
https://www.coloradoan.com/staff/4406514002/pat-ferrier/


3/10/23, 1:40 PM Developer Martin Lind offers hangar for Civil Air Patrol aircraft

https://www.coloradoan.com/story/news/local/2023/03/10/developer-martin-lind-offers-hangar-for-civil-air-patrol-aircraft/69990877007/ 2/2

Fassi told Fort Collins City Council on Tuesday that the lack of hangar space would
significantly hamper CAP's ability to provide emergency services if its pilot and crews had to
drive an hour to Greeley, the next-best option to house its aircraft, before getting its plane in
the air.

He asked council to take a step back and come up with a viable option for people who have
paid the bill at the airport for the last 30 years and "think about the first responders having
to go to an airport 60 minutes away."

The 58 hangar leases generate about $175,000 a year in airport revenue.

Lind's offer "is a big first step" to remaining in Loveland, Fassi said. "It would be ideal."

Torrey's Peak, the first of four buildings at Lind's Discovery Air, was completed in late 2021
on the southern end of Lear Drive, near the edge of the airport.

More:Fate of Northern Colorado airport's virtual tower unclear after closure of Virginia
tower

035

https://www.coloradoan.com/story/news/2023/03/09/fate-of-virtual-air-traffic-control-tower-at-colorado-airport-unclear/69989975007/


3/27/23, 8:10 AM Remote tower at Leesburg Executive set to close - AOPA

https://www.aopa.org/news-and-media/all-news/2023/march/22/remote-tower-at-leesburg-executive-set-to-close 1/4

REMOTE TOWER AT LEESBURGEXECUTIVE SET TO CLOSE
AOPA URGES FAA TO RECONSIDER, FIND
SOLUTION
March 22, 2023 By Lillian Geil

New FAA requirements for remote air traffic control towers led
digital tower vendor Saab to withdraw plans to continue to
operate at Leesburg Executive Airport in Virginia. AOPA and
pilots on the field are concerned about the potential for a
reduction in safety should the airport begin to operate without
ATC for the first time in several years.

 Remote tower at Leesburg Executive set to close

036

https://www.aopa.org/
https://www.aopa.org/destinations/airports/KJYO/details
https://www.aopa.org/news-and-media


3/27/23, 8:10 AM Remote tower at Leesburg Executive set to close - AOPA

https://www.aopa.org/news-and-media/all-news/2023/march/22/remote-tower-at-leesburg-executive-set-to-close 2/4

AOPA graphic based on SkyVector image.

A remote tower, designed by Saab, began operating at Leesburg Executive Airport, in 2015 and

the program has been operational for 10 hours per day since then, recording more than 75,000

takeoffs and landings at the airport annually.

In September 2021, the FAA conducted an extensive air traffic operational evaluation of the Saab

system installed at the airport and concluded the Leesburg Remote Tower System was

“operationally viable.” This was a step in the right direction toward Saab receiving System Design

Approval status for its remote tower equipment configuration.

However, this approval path became complicated when the FAA released draft technical

requirements and a design approval process for new remote tower systems in July 2021, a

process that requires new systems be certified through the FAA remote tower test bed at the

William J. Hughes Technical Center in Atlantic City, New Jersey. While Saab’s system significantly

predates the new FAA technical requirements, the agency was expecting Saab to go through the

approval process as if it was a new system.

Saab decided not to pursue approval, effectively ensuring the system’s removal from Leesburg

Executive Airport.

037

https://www.leesburgva.gov/home/showpublisheddocument/39361/638139503099100000


3/27/23, 8:10 AM Remote tower at Leesburg Executive set to close - AOPA

https://www.aopa.org/news-and-media/all-news/2023/march/22/remote-tower-at-leesburg-executive-set-to-close 3/4

In a letter to acting FAA Administrator Billy Nolen, AOPA President Mark Baker expressed

concerns with the upcoming closure, reiterating safety as the top priority.

“It is very concerning that the FAA would move in this direction, especially given the substantial

increase in traffic in and around Leesburg airspace. The decision to have no tower doesn’t make

sense and I strongly encourage the FAA to reconsider its position given the safety implications,”

said Baker. “I have visited the remote tower in Leesburg and found it to be very impressive.”

In a March 2023 response to Leesburg Mayor Kelly Burk’s concerns with ceasing remote tower

services, the FAA defended the decision to withhold certification of Saab's system until these

new safety and technical standards are met.

“With Saab’s decision to cease pursuit of this required approval, the FAA has determined that

continued use of this unapproved system poses an unacceptable level of risk to all users,

especially as the timeline and likelihood for the approval for a future Saab system remains

unknown,” said John Maffei, acting director of the NextGen Portfolio Management and

Technology Development Office at the FAA.

Removal of the remote tower is scheduled for June 14, but AOPA and Leesburg pilots and

community members are looking for a path forward to maintain ATC at the busy airport. The

priority is a delayed closure of the remote tower to give more time for a long-term, safe solution

to be cemented. If a delay is not possible, the next viable solution would be for the FAA to

accelerate and prioritize efforts to implement a temporary tower to provide ATC until a

permanent tower can be built.

Leesburg is unique compared to most GA airports across the United States because of its high

traffic volume and airspace restrictions. The airport lies within the Washington, D.C., Special

Flight Rules Area, and the tower provides a vital communication link and pilot resource for

airspace restriction clarifications in this busy area. An increased traffic count over recent years,

the complex airspace, and pilots’ adaptation to the presence of a control tower could result in a

reduction of safety when the tower closes.

AOPA continues to have discussions with the FAA and Saab, expressing pilot concerns and

working toward a safe solution for pilots flying in and around Leesburg Executive Airport.

038

https://www.leesburgva.gov/home/showpublisheddocument/39399/638143227469870000


3/27/23, 8:10 AM Remote tower at Leesburg Executive set to close - AOPA

https://www.aopa.org/news-and-media/all-news/2023/march/22/remote-tower-at-leesburg-executive-set-to-close 4/4

Lillian Geil
Digital Media Assistant Editor

Digital Media Assistant Editor Lillian Geil is a student pilot and a graduate of Columbia University

who joined AOPA in 2021.

Topics: Advocacy, Airport Advocacy, ATC

GO TO LILLIAN GEIL'S PROFILE

039

https://www.aopa.org/news-and-media/articles-by-author/lillian-geil
https://www.aopa.org/news-and-media/news-by-topic/advocacy
https://www.aopa.org/news-and-media/news-by-topic/advocacy/airport-advocacy
https://www.aopa.org/news-and-media/news-by-topic/faa-information-and-services/atc
https://www.aopa.org/news-and-media/articles-by-author/lillian-geil


 
 
 
 

              

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission  

 

 

 

ITEM NUMBER: 4 
MEETING DATE: April 20, 2023 

PREPARED BY: Jason Licon, Airport Director 
 
TITLE 
Lease Option Extension Request, 5255 Northrop 
 
RECOMMENDED AIRPORT COMMISSION ACTION 
Approve the lease extension request 
 
BUDGET IMPACT 
None, the lease rates will remain unchanged 
 
SUMMARY 
This is an administrative item. The Airport’s standard land lease terms are an initial 
twenty-five-year lease with three five-year extension options for a total of forty years. 
The Airport was notified (as required by the lease agreement) that the lessee desires to 
exercise their option to extend the land lease agreement for their first five-year 
extension period. This extension request requires the approval of the Airport 
Commission as authorized by the Intergovernmental Agreement between the Cities of 
Fort Collins and Loveland. Staff have reviewed the request and found the associated 
account to be in good standing. 

 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Lease Option Request: Gary MacFarquhar, 5255 Northrop 

040



From: gkegsurf@aol.com
To: Shawn Battmer
Subject: [External] Re: Land Lease Extension Reminder
Date: Friday, March 24, 2023 3:22:07 PM
Attachments: image002.png

Good afternoon 
I would like to exercise the first 5 year extension of our lease on the hangar located at 5255 Northrop
Street. Thank you for your favorable consideration of this request.
V/R,
Gary MacFarquhar 

-----Original Message-----
From: Shawn Battmer <Shawn.Battmer@cityofloveland.org>
To: gkegsurf@aol.com <gkegsurf@aol.com>
Sent: Fri, Mar 24, 2023 3:11 pm
Subject: Land Lease Extension Reminder

March 24, 2023
 
Gary MacFarquhar
28906 Clover Ln.
Evergreen, CO 80439
 
Dear Gary MacFarquhar,
 
Re: PEnDinG LanD LEasE ExPiRatiOn
 
this is a courtesy notice that the land lease for your hangar at 5255 northrop street is coming
up on expiration of its initial term on 5/14/2023. according to article 1 of the originally
signed 5/15/1998 land lease agreement, your initial term was for 25 years with the option for
three 5-year extensions. if you intend to exercise the extension, you must notify us in writing 3
months prior to the expiration of the current term.
 
Please send your notice directly to the airport at airport@cityofloveland.org or 4900 Earhart
Road, Loveland, CO 80538. if you have any questions, you may contact airport staff at 970-
962-2851.
 

thank you,
 
 
 
Jason R. Licon
airport Director

041

mailto:gkegsurf@aol.com
mailto:Shawn.Battmer@cityofloveland.org
mailto:airport@cityofloveland.org



 
 
 
 

              

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission  

 

 

ITEM NUMBER: 5 
MEETING DATE: April 20, 2023 

PREPARED BY: Jason Licon, Airport Director 
 
TITLE 
Aims Community College Access Agreement Renewal 
 
RECOMMENDED AIRPORT COMMISSION ACTION 
Approve Resolution R-02-2023 recommending approval of a three-year renewal of the 
access fee agreement with two one-year extensions with Aims Community College 
 
BUDGET IMPACT 
Positive 
 
SUMMARY 
This is an administrative item. In 1982 the Cities approved a through the fence access 
agreement that allows property owners located in the adjacent Centerpointe Business 
Park access to the Airport’s runways. The agreement is part of the original development 
of the business park to encourage aviation development and airport use. An access fee 
is required by federal rules to align Aims with other private sector flight training 
providers that are located on airport leased property. This agreement has worked well to 
allow Aims the ability to utilize an existing building within this area that had remained 
empty for over a decade and meets federal requirements. 
 
In 2018 the Cities approved a combined five-year access agreement that allows Aims 
Community College to access the Airport from their facility located on private land in the 
Centre Point Business Park. This access is necessary for their collegiate flight training 
programs. The terms of the updated agreement are the same as the version set to 
expire which is adjusted for inflation. The agreement includes payment to the Airport 
based on the land lease fees paid by on-Airport businesses on a per square foot basis. 
This access fee for 2023 is proposed at $32,663.42 per year or $0.485 per square foot 
for the 67,391 square feet of property. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Resolution R-02-2023 
Aims Access Agreement Renewal 2023 

042



RESOLUTION # R-02-2023 
  

A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF A THREE-YEAR 
RENEWAL OF THE ACCESS FEE AGREEMENT WITH AIMS COMMUNITY 
COLLEGE 
 
WHEREAS, the Cities of Fort Collins and Loveland (the “Cities”) jointly own and operate 

the Northern Colorado Regional Airport (the “Airport”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Cities formed the Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission 

(“Commission”) and delegated to the Commission certain authority regarding governance of the 
Airport. On May 17, 2018, the Commission approved an Access Fee Agreement (the “Original 
Agreement”) with Aims Community College (“Aims”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Agreement permits Aims to utilize certain areas of the Airport in 

consideration of payment of access fees commensurate with land lease rates. The initial term of 
the Agreement was for three years, with two additional one-year extensions permitted by written 
agreement of the parties; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Commission approved and the parties executed two one-year extensions 

on April 15, 2021 and April 15, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the conclusion of the three (3) year term and the two (2) additional one (1) 

year renewal terms of the Original Agreement is May 17, 2023 and Aims desires to continue to 
operate an educational program on the Airport that includes an academic degree program for 
professional flight training within the Access Area. Aims intends to continue to satisfy the 
Airport’s regulatory requirements from the Federal Aviation Administration’s grant assurances, 
specifically #22 - Economic Non-discrimination - by paying the same land lease fees and 
complying with the minimum standard requirements that are assessed to improvements and 
operators on the Airport’s property; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Cities desire to accommodate, promote and enhance general aviation at 

the Airport, which includes Aims’ higher education flight training program, by continuing to 
provide Aims a variance to the Taxiway Agreement prohibition against pilot training, and Aims 
desires to be assured of the Airport's continued availability as a base for aircraft and its operations; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Cities and Aims are mutually desirous of entering into a three-year 

renewal Access Fee Agreement (“Agreement”) with Aims Community College for the payment of 
fees to access and use of certain areas at the Airport in compliance with FAA grant assurances; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Commission desires to approve the Agreement and recommend that the 

two Cities, through their City Managers, approve the Agreement.                                     
 

043



NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE NORTHERN COLORADO 
REGIONAL AIRPORT COMMISSION AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  That the Commission approves the three-year renewal Access Fee Agreement 
and recommends that the City Managers of the two Cities also approve such agreement and execute 
any documents necessary to effectuate the same. 
 

Section 2.  That this Resolution shall take effect as of the date and time of its adoption. 
 
 

ADOPTED this 20th day of April, 2023. 
 
 
            

      Don Overcash, Chair of the  
Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission 

 
 
 
ATTEST:       
 
 
     
Secretary 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

044



1 
 

ACCESS FEE AGREEMENT 
 

THIS ACCESS FEE AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 18th day of May 2023 (“Effective Date”), is 
by and between the Cities of Fort Collins and Loveland, Colorado (the “Cities”) acting by and through the 
Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission (“the Commission”) and Aims Community College, a Colorado 
Local District College under C.R. S. 23-71-101 et seq., hereinafter called "Aims." 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the Cities operate a municipal airport within the City of Loveland in Larimer County, Colorado, 

known as the Northern Colorado Regional Airport located in Larimer County, Colorado (hereinafter, the 
"Airport"), pursuant to an Intergovernmental Agreement between the Cities of Fort Collins and Loveland, 
Colorado, dated January 22, 2015, as amended on June 7, 2016 and June 10, 2019; and 
 

WHEREAS, Aims Community College (“Aims”) is the owner of real property at 6350 Aviation Circle, 
Loveland, Colorado, within the Loveland – Fort Collins Industrial Airpark Ninth Subdivision, commonly known as 
the Centrepoint Business Airpark. Such real property is more particularly identified in the legal description 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as “Exhibit A” (hereinafter the “Property”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Property is subject to a Taxiway Improvement and Easement Agreement dated May 4, 

1982, as amended (the “Taxiway Agreement”), entered into between the Cities and Aims’ predecessor-in-
interest Triad Development Corporation. Such Agreement is attached hereto as “Exhibit B” and incorporated 
herein. The Property is within an area with access to the Airport “through the fence” (“Access Area”), and is 
subject to covenants and obligations set forth in the Taxiway Agreement; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Cities and the Airport are subject to certain grant assurances by virtue of receiving 

financial support from the Federal Aviation Administration (“FAA”), as well as minimum standards for activities 
on the Airport; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Cities and Aims entered into an Access Fee Agreement dated May 18, 2018, extended for 

an additional year on April 15, 2021 and April 15, 2022 (“Original Agreement”), for the payment of fees to access 
and use certain areas at the Airport in compliance with grant assurances; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 1 of the Original Agreement, the term of the Original Agreement is 

effective for three (3) years with two (2) additional one (1) year renewal terms and should Aims wish to continue 
to operate its academic flight training program at the conclusion of the three (3) year term and any renewal 
terms, the parties may enter into a new agreement addressing access to the Airport and fees for such access; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the conclusion of the three (3) year term and the two (2) additional one (1) year renewal 

terms of the Original Agreement is May 17, 2023 and Aims desires to continue to operate an educational 
program on the Property that includes an academic degree program for professional flight training within the 
Access Area. Aims intends to continue to satisfy the Airport’s regulatory requirements from the Federal Aviation 
Administration’s grant assurances, specifically #22 - Economic Non-discrimination - by paying the same land 
lease fees and complying with the minimum standard requirements that are assessed to improvements and 
operators on the Airport’s property; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Cities desire to accommodate, promote and enhance general aviation at the Airport, 

which includes Aims’ higher education flight training program, by continuing to provide Aims a variance to the 

045



2 
 

Taxiway Agreement prohibition against pilot training, and Aims desires to be assured of the Airport's continued 
availability as a base for aircraft and its operations; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Cities and Aims are mutually desirous of entering into this Access Fee Agreement 

("Agreement") with Aims Community College for the payment of fees to access and use of certain areas at the 
Airport in compliance with FAA grant assurances; and 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained herein, and other 

good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties 
hereto agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE 1: INCORPORATION OF RECITALS AND TERM 
 
 The foregoing Recitals are incorporated herein by reference as though fully set forth. 
 

Subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement and unless earlier terminated pursuant to this 
Agreement, the Term of this Agreement shall be for three (3) years from the Effective Date (“Initial Term”), 
subject to appropriations as defined in Article 8.2, and may be renewed by the written agreement of the 
parties for two (2) additional one (1) year terms, so long as Aims is not in default of any terms of this Agreement. 
Aims shall provide written notice to the Cities of its intent to renew this Agreement no less than sixty (60) days 
prior to the expiration of the then-current term. Should Aims wish to continue to operate its academic flight 
training program at the conclusion of the Initial Term and any renewal terms, the parties may enter into 
a new agreement addressing access to the Airport and fees for such access. 
 
ARTICLE 2: ACCESS FEE 
 

2.1  Aims acknowledges the existence of the Taxiway Agreement. Aims further acknowledges and 
understands that the Taxiway Agreement imposes certain covenants and obligations on Aims as the owner of 
the Property, including the obligation of Aims to pay its proportionate share of costs for maintenance of the 
taxiway on the Airport also known as the “crosswind runway.” The Taxiway Agreement permits the Cities to 
close access to the Airport “through the fence” if Aims or any other owner of property subject to the Taxiway 
Agreement defaults on such covenants and obligations.  

 
2.2  Aims further acknowledges that the Cities are subject to numerous grant assurances as required 

by the Federal Aviation Administration (“FAA”) which require the Cities to charge Aims a fee to operate its 
professional flight training program with through-the-fence access to the Airport such that the fee creates 
economic parity with businesses operating on the Airport property, further thereby creating a variance to the 
Taxiway Easement Agreement so that Aims can operate its educational program on the property. 

 
2.3 In order to create the economic parity required by the FAA, Aims agrees to pay an access fee to 

the Airport based on the land lease fees paid by on-Airport businesses on a per square foot basis. Aims shall pay 
to the Cities during the Initial Term and any renewal terms an annual access fee (the “Fee”) of $32,663.42 per 
year, approximately $0.485 per square foot for the 67,391 square feet of the Property (including the building 
footprint, ramp, and area surrounding the building footprint, as set forth in Exhibit A), subject to adjustment 
pursuant to Section 2.3.1. 
 

2.3.1 Commencing on May 1st next occurring after the date of this Agreement, and on May 
1st in each year thereafter during the remainder of the Initial Term, the annual rent shall be adjusted 
by multiplying the annual rent payable in the next preceding year by a fraction, the numerator of 

046



3 
 

which shall be the C.P.I., as hereinafter defined, published for the previous month of December and 
the denominator of which shall be the C.P.I. published for the month of December which preceded 
the month used as the numerator. In no event shall the annual rent be reduced from that payable in 
a previous year. The term "C.P.I." as used herein shall mean the Consumer Price Index for all Urban 
Consumers (CPI-U), All Items, for Denver-Aurora-Lakewood, CO as published by the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics of the United States Department of Labor, 1982-84 base = 100. In the event the base year 
is changed, the C.P.I. shall be converted to the equivalent of the base year 1982-84 = 100. In the event 
the Bureau of Labor Statistics ceases to publish the C.P.I., or this index, an equivalent or comparable 
economic index will be used. 

 
2.3.2 The annual Fee payable hereunder may be paid in advance in annual installments due 

upon execution of this Agreement and on or before each anniversary date, or shall be paid in equal 
monthly installments on the first day of each month in advance at the office of the Airport Manager 
or at such other office as may be directed in writing by the Cities. Payments due to the Cities under 
this Agreement shall be paid without offset. In addition to any other remedies provided in this 
Agreement, in the event that any fee or charge set forth in this Agreement is not paid to the Cities 
within ten days of the date due, Aims agrees to pay a late charge of $50.00 for each such late 
payment, and default interest shall accrue on such payment from the date the payment was due, at 
a rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum.  

 
ARTICLE 3: COMPLIANCE 

 
3.1 Aims acknowledges that the Cities have proposed or adopted rules and regulations with respect 

to the use of the Airport, and such rules and regulations may be amended, supplemented or re-enacted from 
time to time by the Cities provided that such rules and regulations apply generally to all similar occupants and 
users on the Airport. Aims agrees to observe and obey any and all such rules and regulations and all other federal, 
state and municipal rules, regulations and laws and to require its officers, agents, employees, students, 
contractors, guests and invitees, to observe and obey the same. In the event of a conflict between the provisions 
of Airport Rules and Regulations and this Agreement, the more stringent provisions shall control. This provision 
will include compliance with the Airport's Noise Abatement Plan as it now exists and as it may hereafter be 
amended or supplemented. The Cities reserve the right to deny access to the Airport and its facilities to any 
person, firm or corporation that fails or refuses to obey and comply with such rules, regulations or laws. Nothing 
in this Article 3 shall be construed to limit the rights of Aims to file any action challenging the lawfulness of any 
such amendment, supplement or reenactment of any such rule or regulations, or to challenge the application of 
the same to Aims. 
 

3.2 Aims shall take measures to insure safety and security in compliance with Federal Aviation 
Administration and Department of Homeland Security Transportation Security Administration Regulations and 
the Airport’s Certification Manual and Security Plan, as they now exist or may hereafter be amended or 
promulgated. Aims shall comply with the Airport safety and security rules and regulations, as they now exist or 
may hereafter be amended or promulgated. 
 

3.3 The use of any roadways or taxiways shall be subject to the Rules and Regulations of the Airport, 
which are now in effect or which may hereafter be promulgated, and subject to temporary closure, provided, 
however, that any closure shall be only for reasonably necessary or unique circumstances, and provided that 
fourteen (14) days prior written notice will be given to Aims relevant to any closure, unless such closure is 
necessary due to emergency. Aims, for itself, its officers, employees and authorized agents, hereby releases and 
discharges the Cities, the Commission, their officers, employees and agents, and all their respective successors 
and assigns, of and from any and all claims, demands, or causes of action which Aims or its authorized agents, 

047



4 
 

guests or invitees may now or at any time hereafter have against any of the foregoing, arising or alleged to arise 
out of the closing of any street, roadway or other area. Aims shall not do or permit anything to be done which 
will interfere with the free access and passage of others to streets or roadways on the Airport. 

 
ARTICLE 4: LIABILITIES, INDEMNITY, AND INSURANCE 
 

4.1 The Cities shall not in any way be liable for any cost, liability, damage or injury including cost of 
suit and expenses of legal services, claimed or recovered by any person whomsoever, or occurring on the 
Property, or the Airport, or as a result of any operations, works, acts or omissions performed on the Property, 
or the Airport, by Aims, its agents, servants, employees, contractors, or their guests or invitees. Aims shall not 
in any way be liable for any cost, liability, damage or injury including cost of suit and expenses of legal services, 
claimed or recovered by any person whomsoever, or occurring on the Airport, or as a result of any operations, 
works, acts, or commission performed on the Airport, solely by the Cities and the Commission, their agents, 
servants, employees or authorized tenants, or their guests or invitees. 

 
4.2 To the extent permitted by law, Aims agrees to indemnify, save and hold harmless, the Cities 

and the Commission, their officers, agents, servants and employees, of and from any and all costs, liability, 
damage and expense, including costs of suit and reasonable expenses of legal services, claimed or recovered, 
justly or unjustly, falsely, fraudulently or frivolously, by any person, firm or corporation by reason of injury to, or 
death of, any person or persons, including Cities' personnel, and damage to, destruction or loss of use of any 
property, including Cities' property, directly or indirectly arising from, or resulting from, any operations, works, 
acts or omissions of Aims, its agents, servants, employees, contractors, or its guests or invitees. Upon the filing 
with the Cities by anyone of a claim for damages arising out of incidents for which Aims herein agrees to 
indemnify and hold the Cities harmless, the Cities shall notify Aims of such claim and in the event that Aims does 
not settle or compromise such claim, then Aims shall undertake the legal defense of such claim on behalf of Aims 
and the Cities. It is specifically agreed, however, that the Cities at their own cost and expense, may participate 
in the legal defense of any such claim. Any final judgment rendered against the Cities for any cause for which 
Aims is liable shall be conclusive against Aims as to liability and amount upon the expiration of the time for 
appeal. 

 
4.3 Aims shall procure and keep in force during the term of this Agreement policies of 

Comprehensive General Liability insurance insuring Aims and the Cities against any liability for personal injury, 
bodily injury, death, or property damage arising out of the subject of this Agreement with a combined single 
limit of at least one million dollars or with a limit of not less than the maximum amount that may be recovered 
against the Cities under the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, whichever is greater. No such policies shall 
be cancelable or subject to reduction in coverage limits or other modification except after ten (10) days prior 
written notice to the Cities. The policies shall be for the mutual and joint benefit and protection of Aims and 
the Cities and such policies shall contain a provision that the Cities, although named as an insured, shall 
nevertheless be entitled to recovery under said policies for any loss occasioned to it, its servants, agents, 
citizens, and employees by reason of negligence of Aims. Aims shall provide certificates of insurance, in a form 
acceptable to the Cities and marked "premium paid" evidencing existence of all insurance required to be 
maintained prior to the commencement of the Agreement. 

 
4.4 Aims represents that it is the owner of or fully authorized to use any and all services, processes, 

machines, articles, marks, names or slogans used by it in its operations under or in any way connected with this 
Agreement. To the extent permitted by law, Aims agrees to save and hold the Cities and the Commission, their 
officers, employees, agents and representatives free and harmless of and from any loss, liability, expense, suit 
or claim for damages in connection with any actual or alleged infringement of any patent, trademark or 

048



5 
 

copyright, or arising from any alleged or actual unfair competition or other similar claim arising out of the 
operations of Aims under or in any way connected with this Agreement. 

 
4.5 Aims, for itself, its personal representatives, successors in interest and assigns, as a part of the 

consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with the land that: 
 

4.5.1 No person on the grounds of race, color, disability or national origin shall be excluded 
from participating in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in Aims’ 
operation of its academic flight school on the Property and at the Airport; 

 
4.5.2 That in Aims’ operation of its academic flight school on the Property and at the Airport, 

no person on the grounds of race, color, disability or national origin shall be excluded from 
participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination; 

 
4.5.3 That Aims shall use the Property and operate its academic flight school in compliance 

with all other requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, 
Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in 
federally-assisted programs of the Department of Transportation Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, and as said regulations may be amended. 

 
4.6 In this connection, the Cities reserve the right to take whatever action they might be entitled by 

law to take in order to enforce this provision following the sixty (60) days prior written notice to Aims of any 
alleged violation. This provision is to be considered as a covenant on the part of Aims, a breach of which, 
continuing after notice by the Cities to cease and desist and after a determination that a violation exists made 
in accordance with the procedures and appeals provided by law, will constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement and will entitle the Cities, at their option, to exercise its right of termination as provided for herein, 
or take any action that it deems necessary to enforce. 

 
4.7 To the extent legally required and applicable, Aims assures that it will undertake an affirmative 

action program as required by 14 CFR, Part 152, Subpart E, to insure that no person shall on the grounds of race, 
creed, color, national origin, disability or sex, be excluded from participation in any employment activities 
covered in 14 CFR Part 152 Subpart E. Aims assures that no person shall be excluded on these grounds from 
participating in or receiving the services or benefits of any program or activity covered by this subpart. Aims 
assures that it will require that its covered sub organizations provide assurances to Aims that they similarly will 
undertake affirmative action program and that they will require assurances from their sub organizations, to the 
extent required by 14 CFR Part 152, Subpart E, to the same effect. 
 
ARTICLE 5: GOVERNMENTAL REQUIREMENTS 

 
5.1 Aims shall procure all licenses, certificates, permits or other authorization from all governmental 

authorities, if any, having jurisdiction over Aims' operations at the Property and on the Airport which may be 
necessary for such operations. 

 
5.2 Aims shall pay all taxes, license, certification, permits and examination fees and excise taxes 

which may be assessed, levied, exacted or imposed on the Property or operation hereunder or on the gross 
receipts or gross income to Aims there from, and shall make all applications, reports and returns required in 
connection therewith.  

 

049



6 
 

 
ARTICLE 6: CLOSURE OF ACCESS; DEFAULT; TERMINATION 
 

6.1 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement and in addition to any 
other remedies the Cities may have, Aims acknowledges and agrees that the Cities may close Aims' access 
to the Airport through-the-fence for the following reasons: (a) default by Aims on payment of the Fee 
or of any terms, conditions or covenants of this Agreement; (b) failure by Aims to pay any amounts 
required of it to be paid under the Taxiway Agreement or to comply with any other terms, conditions 
or covenants of the Taxiway Agreement; (c) any requirement of the FAA; and (d) any circumstance under 
which the Cities believe closure is required for compliance with the FAA grant assurances. Should the 
Cities close access pursuant to this Paragraph 6.1, Aims expressly agrees that the Cities shall have no 
liability to Aims for any costs, damages, or any other potential loss due to closure of access to the Airport. 

 
6.2 In the event of a default on the part of Aims in the payment of the Fee, the Cities shall 

give written notice to Aims and demand the cancellation of this Agreement, or the correction thereof. If, within 
sixty (60) days after the date the Cities give such notice, Aims has not corrected said default and paid the 
delinquent amount in full, then the Cities may, by written notice to Aims, terminate this Agreement.  

 
6.3 Subject to the provisions of Section 6.1 above, this Agreement, together with all rights and 

privileges granted under this Agreement, shall terminate at the option of the Cities with prompt written notice 
to Aims upon the happening of any one or more of the following events: 

 
6.3.1 The filing by Aims of a voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or any assignment for 

benefit of creditors of all or any part of Aims' assets; or 
 
6.3.2 Any institution of proceedings in bankruptcy against Aims; provided, however, that 

Aims may defeat such termination if the petition is dismissed within one hundred twenty (120) days 
after the institution thereof; or 

 
 
6.3.3 The filing of a petition requesting a court to take jurisdiction of Aims or its assets 

under the provision of any Federal reorganization act which, if it is an involuntary petition is not 
dismissed within one hundred twenty (120) days after its being filed; or 

 
6.3.4 The filing of a request for the appointment of a receiver or trustee of all, or 

substantially all, of Aims' assets by a court of competent jurisdiction, which if the request if not made 
by Aims is not rejected within one hundred twenty (120) days after being made, or the request for 
the appointment of a receiver or trustee of all, or substantially all, of Aims' assets by a voluntary 
agreement with Aims' creditors. 
 
6.4 Upon the default by Aims in the performance of any covenant or condition required to be 

performed by Aims other than the payment of the Fee, and the failure of Aims to remedy such default for a 
period of sixty (60) days after mailing by the Cities of written notice to remedy the same, unless more 
extensive notice is otherwise provided for in this Agreement, the Cities may, by written notice of cancellation 
to Aims, terminate this Agreement and all rights and privileges granted hereby.  
 

6.5 Upon the default by Aims, and the giving of notice of the default and cancellation by the 
Cities as provided for elsewhere herein, the notice of cancellation shall become final. 

 

050



7 
 

6.6 Subject to the provisions of Section 6.1, upon the cancellation or termination of this 
Agreement for any reason, all rights of Aims, its agents or employees, shall terminate, including all rights or 
alleged rights of creditors, trustees, assigns, and all others similarly so situated as to the Property.  

 
6.7 Failure by the Cities or Aims to take any authorized action upon default by Aims of any of the 

terms, covenants or conditions required to be performed, kept and observed by Aims shall not be construed 
to be, nor act as, a waiver of said default nor of any subsequent default of any of the terms, covenants and 
conditions contained herein to be performed, kept and observed by Aims. Acceptance of the Fee by the Cities 
from Aims, or performance by the Cities under the terms hereof, for any period or periods after a default by 
Aims of any of the terms, covenants and conditions herein required to be performed, kept and observed by 
Aims shall not be deemed a waiver or estoppel of any right on the part of the Cities to cancel this Agreement 
for any subsequent failure by Aims to so perform, keep or observe any of said terms, covenants or conditions. 

 
6.8 This Agreement will terminate at the option of Aims: 

 
6.8.1 Upon the permanent closure of the Airport, the term "permanent closure" to mean 

for the purposes of this Agreement, the closure of the Airport for ninety (90) or more consecutive 
days; 

 
6.8.2 The loss of the ability of Aims due to no significant fault of Aims to fly in or out of the 

Airport for reasons other than inclement weather, casualty or disaster, for a period of ninety (90) 
consecutive days; and 

 
6.8.3 The default by Cities in the performance of any covenant or condition required to be 

performed by the Cities, and the failure of the Cities to remedy such default for a period of sixty (60) 
days after receipt from Aims of written notice to remedy the same, or default in the timely payment 
of any money due Aims and failure to cure such default within sixty (60) days after notice to the 
Cities. Notice of exercise of the option to terminate by Aims shall be given in the manner specified 
in Article 7 (Notices). In the event of Termination pursuant to this subsection 6.7.3, Aims shall be 
entitled to a refund of the pro-rated amount of any fees prepaid to the Cities, if any. 

 
6.9 If Aims ceases to conduct its academic flight training program on the Property for a period of 

twelve (12) consecutive months, the Cities may terminate this Agreement by written notice to Aims given at 
any time while such cessation continues, unless Aims resumes such activities within sixty (60) days following 
receipt of written notice from the Cities of such intent to terminate this Agreement. 
 

6.10 If Aims fails to obtain any required permit or other governmental approval for the use of  the 
Property or operation of the academic flight training program pursuant to Section 5, within eighteen (18) 
months of the commencement date set forth in Section 1.1, or if Aims fails to maintain any such permits or 
approvals during the term of this Agreement, this Agreement shall terminate, unless cured by Aims within 
sixty (60) days following receipt of written notice from the Cities specifying the nature of such failure. Upon 
termination of this Agreement pursuant to this Section 6.9 and cessation of operation of its academic flight 
training program, Aims shall not be required to pay additional fees, but no refund shall be due to Aims of 
payments made by Aims pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 7: NOTICES 

 
7.1 Any notice, consent, approval or other communication given by either party to the other relating 

to this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be delivered in person, sent by U.S. mail postage prepaid, sent 

051



8 
 

by reputable overnight courier, or sent by electronic means (with evidence of such transmission received) to 
such other party at the respective addresses set forth below (or at such other address as may be designated 
from time to time by written notice given in the manner provided herein). Such notice shall, if hand delivered 
or personally served, be effective immediately upon receipt. If sent by US mail postage prepaid, such notice 
shall be deemed given on the third business day following deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid 
and properly addressed; if delivered by overnight courier, notice shall be deemed effective on the first business 
day following deposit with such courier; and if delivered by electronic means, notice shall be deemed effective 
when received. 

 
7.2 The notice addresses of the parties are as follows: 

 
To the Cities:   Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission 

      Attn: Airport Director 
      4900 Earhart Drive 
      Loveland, CO 80538 

Facsimile: (970) 962-2855 
      Email address: airport@cityofloveland.org  
 
  With a copy to:   Loveland City Attorney’s Office 
      500 E. Third Street 
      Loveland, CO 80537      
           
  To Aims:   Attn: Vice President of Administrative Services 

     Company Name: Aims Community College 
     Address: 5401 W. 205h Street 
     City, State and Zip Code: Greeley, CO  80632 
     Email Address: chuck.jensen@aims.edu 
     Phone: (970) 339-6409 

 
ARTICLE 8: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

8.1 Legal Constraints. The parties recognize the legal constraints imposed upon the Cities by the 
constitutions, statutes, and regulations of the State of Colorado and of the United States, and imposed upon 
Loveland and Fort Collins by their respective charters and municipal codes, and, subject to such constraints, the 
parties intend to carry out the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision in 
this Agreement to the contrary, in no event shall any party exercise any power or take any action which shall 
be prohibited by applicable law. 

 
8.2 Appropriation. To the extent this Agreement constitutes a multiple fiscal year debt or financial 

obligation of the Cities or Aims, it shall be subject to annual appropriation pursuant to the City of Loveland 
Municipal Charter Section 11-6; Article V, Section 8 of the City of Fort Collins Charter; and Article X, Section 20 
of the Colorado Constitution. The Cities nor Aims shall have no obligation to continue this Agreement in any 
fiscal year in which no such appropriation is made. 

 
8.3 Governmental Immunity Act. No term or condition of this Agreement shall be construed or 

interpreted as a waiver, express or implied, of any of the notices, requirements, immunities, rights, benefits, 
protections, limitations of liability, and other provisions of the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 
24-10-101 et seq. and under any other applicable law. 

 

052



9 
 

8.4 Invalid Provisions. The invalidity of any provisions, articles, paragraphs, portions or clauses of 
this Agreement shall have no effect upon the validity of any other part or portion hereof, so long as the 
remainder shall constitute an enforceable agreement. Furthermore, in lieu of such invalid provisions, articles, 
paragraphs, portions or clauses, there shall be added automatically as a part of this Agreement, a provision as 
similar in terms to such invalid provision as may be possible and be legal, valid and enforceable. 

 
8.5 Remedies to be Non-exclusive. All remedies provided in this Agreement shall be deemed 

cumulative and additional and not in lieu of, or exclusive of, each other, or of any other remedy available to the 
Cities, or Aims, at law or in equity, and the exercise of any remedy, or the existence herein of other remedies or 
indemnities shall not prevent the exercise of any other remedy provided that the Cities' remedies in the event 
of default shall not exceed those set forth in this Agreement. 

 
8.6 Non-liability of Individuals. No director, officer, agent or employee of the Cities shall be charged 

personally or held contractually liable by or to the other party under any term or provision of this Agreement or 
of any supplement, modification or amendment to this Agreement because of any breach thereof, or because 
of his or their execution or attempted execution of the same. Except to the extent expressly provided for herein, 
no officer, agent or employee of Aims shall be charged personally or held contractually liable by or to the other 
party under any term or provision of this Agreement or of any supplement, modification or amendment to this 
Agreement because of any breach thereof, or because of his or their execution or attempted execution of the 
same. 

 
8.7 General Provisions. 
 

8.7.1 This Agreement shall construed in accordance with the State of Colorado and venue 
shall be in Larimer County, Colorado. 

 
8.7.2 This Agreement is made for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Cities and Aims, their 

successors and assigns, and is not made for the benefit of any third party. 
 
8.7.3 In the event of any ambiguity in any of the terms of this Agreement, it shall not be 

construed for or against any party hereto on the basis that such party did or did not author the same. 
 
8.7.4 All covenants, stipulations and agreements in this Agreement shall extend to and bind 

each party hereto, its legal representatives, successors and assigns. 
 

8.7.5 The titles of the several articles of this Agreement are inserted herein for convenience 
only, and are not intended and shall not be construed to affect in any manner the terms and provisions 
hereof, or the interpretation or construction thereof. 
 

8.7.6 Nothing herein contained shall create, or be construed to create, a partnership, joint 
venture, agency or any other relationship between the Cities and Aims. The Cities and Aims each 
expressly disclaim the existence of any such relationship between them. 
 

8.7.7 Cities have and may allow certain portions of the Airport to be used by others at any 
time and Aims shall not interfere in any manner with said other users or with the facilities granted to 
such other users or tenants. Nothing herein contained shall be construed to grant or authorize the 
granting of an exclusive right prohibited by Section 308 of the Federal Aviation Act of 1958, as 
amended, and the Cities reserved the right to grant to others the privilege and right of conducting any 

053



10 
 

one or all of the activities specified herein, or any other activities of an aeronautical nature.  
 

8.7.8 The time within which either party hereto shall be required to perform any act under 
this Agreement, other than the payment of money, shall be extended by a period equal to the number 
of days during which performance of such act is delayed unavoidably by strikes, lockouts, acts of God, 
governmental restrictions, failure or inability to secure materials or labor by reason of or similar 
regulation or order of any governmental or regulatory body, war, enemy action, acts of terrorism, civil 
disturbance, fire, unavoidable casualties, or any similar occurrence. 
 
8.8 Availability of Government Facilities. In the event the existence, maintenance or operation of air 

navigation aids or other facilities supplied or operated by the United States or the State of Colorado at or in 
conjunction with the Airport are discontinued, the Cities shall have no obligation to furnish such facilities. 

 
8.9 Assignment. Neither party may assign this Agreement without the express prior written consent 

of the other party. 
 
8.10 Authorized Representative. The Cities designate the Commission and the Airport Manager as its 

representatives who shall make, within the scope of their authority, all necessary and proper decisions with 
reference to the Agreement.   

 
ARTICLE 9: SUBORDINATION CLAUSES 

 
9.1 This Agreement is subject and subordinate to the following: 

 
9.1.1 The Cities reserve the right to develop and improve the Airport as they see fit, 

regardless of the desires or view of Aims, and without interference or hindrance by or on behalf of 
Aims. 

9.1.2 The Cities reserve the right to take any action they consider necessary to protect the 
aerial approaches to the Airport against obstruction, together with the right to prevent Aims from 
erecting or permitting to be erected any building or other structure on the Airport which would limit the 
usefulness of the Airport or constitute a hazard to aircraft. 
 

9.1.3 This Agreement is and shall be subordinate to the provision of existing and future 
agreements between the Cities and the United States relative to the operation or maintenance of the 
Airport, the execution of which has been or may be required as a condition precedent to the obtaining 
or expenditure of federal funds for the benefit of the Airport. 

 
9.1.4 During the time of war or national emergency, the Cities shall have the right to lease all 

or any part of the landing area or of the airport to the United States for military use, and if any such 
lease is executed, the provisions of this Agreement insofar as they may be inconsistent with the 
provisions of such lease to the government, shall be suspended, but such suspension shall not extend 
the term of this Agreement. Abatement of the Fee shall be reasonably determined by the Cities and 
Aims in proportion to the degree of interference with Aims' use of the Airport. 

 
9.1.5 Except to the extent required for the performance of any obligations of Aims 

hereunder, nothing contained in this Agreement shall grant to Aims any rights whatsoever in the 
airspace above the Cities' Airport facilities other than those reasonably necessary to Aims' use of the 
Cities’ Airport facilities and which are consistent with Federal Aviation Administration rules, regulations 
and orders currently or subsequently effective. Further, Aims' rights in airspace above the Airport and 

054



11 
 

the Airport facilities shall be not less than the rights therein by other users of the Airport and Airport 
facilities. 

 
ARTICLE 10: ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 
This Agreement and the Taxiway Agreement constitute the entire agreement of the parties hereto and 

may be changed, modified, discharged or extended by written instrument duly executed by the Cities and Aims. 
The parties agree that no representations or warranties shall be binding upon the Cities or Aims unless expressed 
in writing.  

 
ARTICLE 11: ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE. This Agreement may be executed by electronic signature in accordance 
with C.R.S 24-71.3-101 et seq. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day and year first above 
written. 
 
  

055



12 
 

CITY OF LOVELAND, COLORADO 
 

___________________________________  
City Manager 

 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________  
City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________________  
Assistant City Attorney 
 
 

CITY OF FORT COLLINS, COLORADO 
 

___________________________________  
City Manager 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________  
City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________________  
Deputy City Attorney 

 
AIMS COMMUNITY COLLEGE: 
 

       
      By:         
 
      Title:         
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Sandra Owens, Esq. 
Counsel For Aims Community College 

056



EXHIBIT A 

LOT 8, BLOCK 1, LOVELAND-FORT COLLINS INDUSTRIAL AIRPARK NINTH SUBDIVISION, LOVELAND, 
COLORADO 

13 

057



.. · .. -
EXHIBIT 8: · 

-· . . - . ~' . 

t'. i 

f. 

; 

: ,· 

( 

058



i : 

H•.:P1'N' 85017518:\ 04/15 / 85 0&:42:41 f 
J. ULVANG, fH:CORDER - L!\RlMER COUNTY, CO. OE' PAG~:s - 20 

DOC. FEE-
FEF. -
s.oo 

$6 0. 00 

AMEHDtD TAXIWAY lK?IOVEM!.!'1' !KD !ASP'JallfT .ACillM!IT 

Thia on1c n<h•J Agreetnent, made and entered ioto effective Hoy 4, 
190~, 11 by onJ bctvccn TllAD D!VlLOPKEJIT COll'ORJ.nOJr, IJIIC., on Aritona 
Corpo ration (linrinafter referred lo ca "Triad"); the CITI OF JOiT 
COLLINS, COLORADO, 11 Hunicipal Corporation, and the CITY Of LOV'llAJID, 
COLORADO, 11 Hunicipal Corporation; and the 101T COLLII! - LOV'llAJ[I) 
AilU'Oll.T .ltrrBOlilTT, .1 Public Airr •J rt Authority (hcreicnftcr referred to 
os ''Ower"), lih ich no\o' operate• the Fort Collins - Lovcl11nd Hunic ips 1 
Airport (hereinafter ''Airport") 1 punuant to the terms of an Ai;reCtJcnt 
d1llt·d Dece rc bcr 20, 1983 with the Cities of Lovelood, Colorado, and Fort 
Colli11s, Color.:i.Jo, 1,1ho shall be deemed the "OvncrH in the cveot the Fort 
Co l I i ll s - Loveland Airport Authority cc.lies to operate the Airport. 

1/lTnS.SETU: 

In con tt i<lctalion of the prcp iscu and covtnonta herein contained and 
pnymcnt1 to be made bet cunder, the port i e1 agrer:11 011 fol low•: 

1. Triad .!Ind the Cities hnvt• prt!viously cutcred _ into a Taxiliay 
I r. :•roveC!lent nnd Easement Agreemcnt dated Hay 4, 1982 which i11 recorded 
at Book 2172, Page 1459, Recordo of Larimer County Clerk and Recorder, 
ht·:-einaftrr re(erred . to 119 "Taxiwny Agreement". Thia Agreecent 
a1· r- crscde1 aod aup p lant!I tbe uid HTaxiway" Agreement". 

2. Ta;r.iwny I mp rovementc. Triad is he reby authorii:cd to co nstruct upon 
t L :: Loveland - Fort Collins 1-irport ta.:x.iway iq,rovement11 locat<.<l as 
sh ·,•.r.i upon Exhibit "l" attached hereto, to have a paved 1urface no lc11 
tl! -n forty feet (40') in 'olidth and be conatructrd 1ub1tantially in 
accordooce ._.ith Exhibit "2" or the then applicable (if different than 
Exhibit "2") Federal Aviation Administration design ■ pecificntions at 
tl! •i t ice of construct.ion for ta.xivays accot:100dnt iog dual wheel gear 
si:craft vith a. o.1xit1.1m gro61 ._.eight of 60,000 pound,, ,.,bicbever 
sr •cificatiocs r ender the greatest load bearing capacity. Triad shall 
in - 1 ude io such cocstructioo reflectora or other FAA approved m..arkiog 
dc •· :ces, other than lights, to mark the ta.xi..,ay. A portion of the coat 
of s uch coo s tructioo and tn.arki " 6 shall be eligible for refunding in 
:icorda.nce with paragraph J belo ·.- . Tri.id, in its discretion, and at it& 
s o ' e expen11e 1 m..ay .al anytiCDe ovc1si2:e the tax:iv.!!y iiq>rovecerit1 but shall 
b2 •. e no oblisation to do _so. All ioptovec:cot11 ,ball be coo&tructcd io 
ac , ordaace \lith specifications nod pl.ans approved by the Owner, which 
IIF !· roval 1hall not be uoreuonably ._.ithheld. 

.-

2,1. Upon completion of the taxiway iqirovesieot1, t~t portion of 
the taxiway which i1 to bo u1ed u a com.binatioo of terziporary 
crouwiod ruoway and tnivay aball be ,;.ppropri..ately iur\ced to 
deaigoate ;uch usage. The Cnrocr Ltoticipate ■ at &ometiae io the 
future that • penuncct cro11wind runway vill be coo1tructcd • but 
the (}.;ncr 1hall have co obliaatioo to do 10 and the tuiway ray be 

-. .1 -

/~~~>-;-::·· . 
- .; " • l ."": ..., , _., ., •• 

059



' 

'· 
J. 
;.'I'• .. •. 
-i,r.•.'' 
-~ -,~, 
~--;.:, ·
~,t ~·-··:!1.~ ·'."\~ 
-~• •· ... . L " ,'i®,"}~/-: -~:,'.' •r-.:~ <( • : - ~ - .. , •• .: . , ·$:· f, ! ! 

·. ·. ~ ~--~:<gl~-~:J·\ ::\:, I ?i -- -:--

:.T 

u,cd inJefiniLcly as o ruc ... uy aud tuivay. At 1uch ti10e 01 auch 
pertil.lnc n ~ rJ D\J DY i1 completl-d, the taxiv.:iy lmprovemeot• completed 
by Triad ohall revert ■ olcly to taxivay u•e aod the taxivay vill 
be appr upri n tl'l y rcru arlr.cd at nu coat to Triad or it• 1uccea1or1 or 
au ign s . 

2,2, The in1olnllatiot1 of tho t11xivgy ii:iprove~:1 -n t ■ •hall be 
pedurm·d in a i; ood ucd •,mrkllllln like !aahlon • ond the contractor 
perfor ming H!Ch wutk 1h11ll guarantee the t!Ulteriah nod ...orlr.gao1hip 
for ;i peri od uf cot lc!lll thon ooe (1) ye.:ir. Tbe 0·..l!ler ahall have 
the ri 6ht t o io11pect the 1JOrk during coo ■ truction and upon 
cociplclion of lhc worlr.. trpon its completion and provi ■ ion to the 
Ovoe r o ! l'V i d cncc suff ic ice t Lo 1hov tit le to the \IOtk 

uncncuol>crcd by any cocucbranct• or lien1 1 oll 1ucb improvement, 
locatl'J upon the Airpon pro,ierty ,hall thereupon be conveyed free 
of all liL·n• aod encumbrancu to the Ovruir. Title ■ hall ve ■ t in 
0.~cr upon ucc~ptnncc of auch coov1yMoc1 by Owner, ybich ■ ball not 
be unreasonably v i thbeld. 

3, W!!!!ilii• lt i1 agreed that Triad ah.all have the right and 
opportunity to recoup a cuxitnUm of fifty percent ( 50%) o( the co ■ t ■ 
eli g ible !or refundi ng. In order to provide 1uch reimbur,eoent. at 1uch 
t i c e a ■ any portion of the land within the "taxiYay uae z.one 11 (111 sho\Jll 
up un Exhibit "3"), ii firat leucd by the governing r n:i y of the Fort 
Co llins - Loveland Hu nicipal Airport for uae for aero · ·,tical re.lated 
a c tiv1t1ca, there s hall be paid to Triad by the Citi• 1 a 1u1:1 to be 
calculat1:d by u::ultiplyiog fifty percent (50:) of the cop : of the tg,;,tivay 
i mp rovcc:ieots installed by Triad tic:ica a fraction in vhi · t, the nucerator 
i!i the aqua re !ootDge of the leased area, aod the der. ;~in a tor ia tbe 
t ulal ■ quarc footage in the taxivay u,e zone vbich thc- Ch,,ner plans to 
u ..: c or t10kc available for uu for aeronautical related 11· tivitie1. 

J.l. The 0-wtar agree ■ that, at the time any land ;n the "taxiway 
uu z.onP." i1 first leased or improved for aexvnaut. ic:al actiyitiea, 
the Ov.ier -will de! ice the area withio the "taxiway IJle woe" which 
Yill be u ■ eued !or reicbura=nt. Such area 1,i 11 include all 
land -withit1 the "taxivay uae :i.one" which vill be reuonably 
upected to beoef it fro111 the taxiva:, iq,rove-rit s in1tal led by 
'!ri.1d, but shall not include automobile service :!' t ations, rental 
auto of!ice, • or pu-blic auto parking lot• aod road11ay1. The aru 
10 deten:iiaed shall hereafter be called th• "taxi~,y contribution 
area". 

3.2. Triad ,ball, vithin one buodred and tventy (120) days after 
cocrpletion of any improvei::ieota constructed pur11uant to this 
Agreement, aupply to the Ovner a atate:iieot of the total co•t• of 
■ uch i mprovcceo ta• 11nd auppo rt dcx:ui::ien tat ion if requca t ed by the 
Owner. · 

3.J. The obligation of the Ovner to proyide reimburar1W0t to 
Triad !- r-reuodcr 1bal 1 extend for a period of fiftean ( 15) years 

- 2 -

.... . :1 •; 

,• 

'- •• 

·> 

··• 

; : 

'• ·-~ 
.-r-r: . 

. - .. . _;..: ~~ . 
. . :~_;t_ 
. •. • : l ~, • 

. > t;. 
' ·::•·' 

. ·: ~-~_'-
•'. 

.·,_.-3: 

\i 
·,\"i_l 

-~ /· 

:11, 
);\"f- ~it 
. '}r, {--A\ 
,1{ ~ ·~1,~ ~A'6fi ::- :t j~:~~ 

. ·::' 
·--:~ 'i~~.: 

.':f-i"";-~~-
. f.':-:--1':~-?--
c · ·· ~- - ~ 

... :}):;) ,:~·:i•1 ·:·'"-i'i~ ( :\1.~tf j '! 
. 1:.,: i: · "•\ 
,• ~~-(,,' . -:1 

::_i 
• • ~v 

· ... f.j 
. : ~.:~ 
~~ 

·~1~· 
=~-' -

:·3!~ ~~: 
~ ~ - :' 
:-.~ "\:~ ;::...,L 

'· 

060



-
·-

~~r.'.! 
1 :: , 

\~~ 
;·~ ... · 
~; ·t 
·i :\ 
f.., 
1"-.:, 
; .! 

:J}: 

-~-
;. 
:-· 
·;i 
t; 
,•"; 
.;-_ 
.j 
-...: 
'-'; -~·-. , 
i i
i-..; 

1·· 
. ~~ 

'•'! ' -· .. ( 

:~~-<·tt:i :)· l-.. 
• ; -(~~~ I " )~ •~ • I. o ,\1:~:~ o ::i.::¢-•<~· 

4 • .Jll.J:.Jlly_f.s;ti.Q;il.Il.UU.!..• The real properly bei.ng developed by Tri.Ad h 
kuovn oM Lhc Lovclao<l - fort Collica Induatrial Ai r park, aod certain 
portions o( the Airpark ahall havo direct accu n to the taxi..,ay 
improve=ot1 which are the aubjcct of thia Airecmcot, Thoae portion , of 
the real p r ope rty havio~ »uch direct access are hereinafter r efe rred to 
011 the "toxi1o·ay acceu area" and are deacribed a1 Block 3 of tho Haater 
Pi ao of the Loveland - Fort Colli.na loduwtrial Airpark, doted November 
4, 1981 , as reviaed December 15, 1981 (hereinafter "Muter Plan"), aod 
no Amendment l o ,uch Huter Plao ,hal l af!tct th1 term.a of thia 
Agrcemcot un lt: 11 approved in writ log by Ovoor. Triad agree, to iq,oae 
covcoant1 upon the tui..,ay acccsa area, prohibitilli u1oa of t he property 
for co=crcial 11erooautic11l ·· activitiu (a• hereafter defined), aod 
proh i b itiog ,a le of aviation fuel to the public . Such covenaota aball 
not prevent aeronau tical uses which arc 5ecoodary or incidental to the 
pri=r y u;e of the property vhich ia oat a collllnerci11l 11eronautical use, 
.11nd s hall not pr even t .11oy aircraft operator from adjuating, repairiog, 
r e fuel ing , cleaning , aod otherwiae aerviciog hia ovn aircraft. Io the 
cvcot such covenant , or any other covcoaot• or agreement• required to be 
creat ed by Tr i3d purjua.ot to the terw of this Ag r eemen t ore oo t 
r eco rd ed, tl,cn Lbia Agreeceot ahal 1 be eon1trued a• cre.11tiog 1uch 
rc1triclion1 oo t be Taxi"'•Y Acce11 Area. Io the eveot or ao y cooflict 
be t\/een 1uc b covenant, aod thi1 Ai.r eement, thi.a Agreement abal 1 
cootro 1. 

5. 

4 .1. For the purpoaea of this Agreelllent, the following ahall 
conatitute "co=crcial aeronautical activities" if provided to the 
public: airt axi, charte r , aod airc11rrier aervice Operatiooa; pilot 
tra1n1ni; ~ircra!t rental; aerial •i&htaeeini, a prayioi, aod 
advc rtiaiog; aircraft 111lea aod 1cnilce; aircraft atorag"; ule of 
aircraft p:,~ ts; repai r ,nd caintenaoce of aircraft; sale or 
dispeosiog or avi11tion petro leuc product11; rental of cotor 
vehicles. The Ovoer shall have a right to inspec tion of the 
p r ope rty a. ~-d i:!::p r ove=ot1 io the t11.1iway acceaa .irea for the 
purpo1e or ioauring compliance with this Agree:,ent. 

4.2. The Ovoer cove0Ant1 aod aireu that no ovn,r of property in 
aaid taxiv~y acceaa area shall be cbaried any direct fee, rental, 
or other cbarie vhich is uacd to directly defray or directly 
reimburse 11ny of the reitibuuable coat• of taxiway improveoeota 
io,talled !>y ·Triad io accordance vitb this J.&recmcnt. 

Con trol of~-

5,l. The partie1 qree that in the event that any party hereto, 
o r the ovctra in the t :uivay accru area find it desirable to 
provide a 111ean1 by vhi•· h acce11 betTten the ta:x.ivay acce11 area 
aod the Airport ia cont ( oll.-d in order to prot1ct and preserva the 

- 3 -

061



r 
I 
I 

j 

:: 

properly .anJ inlcreat o! tba ovneu of l.111;,..1 ia ' the tu.h1ay acce,, 
area or to prc ■ erve the Ovner'• interest ia protc-ctiaa the ieneral 
wel!arC' 0r.<l ~11fc-Ly And tb11 opeution of the Airport, then the 
Olltlot cnoy e11Lu bli 1h rr:osonoblc ~thod, end proccdurt• dc,i1r,ned to 
ia,urr that acct·& ■ to a_nJ frum Airport !acilitiu aod the t.a:d.,,.,y 
;1cceb~ ;.irco , by use of the taxi'vo.y iq>1ove0eot1 ioatulled by 
Tri.11d, LJ:uy be &o i.nc-d only by the ovorr• of property la the taxi\i&)' 
I.IC C C • Ji O r l' ll • 

5.2. A1 :1 conJ it ion for ncct'11 oatu tbe Airport from the Laxivay 
acceaa arco, c:.ich property ovner o r uaer shall be obligated to 
obide by the covenoots placed upon the property by the OYDeu. 
further, aa .:in addilionol condition for gaining 11cce11 to the 
Airpor t from the taxi1,1ay acceu area, c-ach property ovner or user 
uh .sll bl' pr-ohib itcd fi- oc eni;ogini in the coi=rcial aeronautical 
activities dcscr-ihed ia porograph 4.1 obove on the property 
coctaincJ in tl,c t:u.i1,1ay ,cccs1 1rc;a. 

5,3, It ia 1pecific1lly uo<lerltood acd !!&recd that the provi1ion, 
of tlii• Section 5 ,h:ill be en!orce11ble oaaiott each lot o\itleI' 
indlvi Juol ly, or c-ach pcrtoo aainini, accc:-u to tht Alrport froC'.l 
thi t axiway ;ic cca1 area. 

6. Grant of Eooec,cnt. The Ovncr agrci?& that upoo commcccemcot of tbe 
c ons truction by Triad o( the improvements described in thi, Agree-cent, 
the 0.-ner 9ho l 1 forthwith execute aad deliver to Triad a:, acce•• 
coseccat i □ the Iurm llttoch cd he reto a ■ Exhibit "4", The tioc of 
coc::.c , caceme □ t [ <.J r i.uch ic:proveo.eat a shall occur at auch tlme 11.s required 
by the ter = o f t he Subdivi,ion Icnpr-ovcocota Aare=eot effecting the 
taxiway i n:1,1rov ecieols as en tered ioto between Triad and the COtJoty of 
Larimer in c o nnection with the approval by the County of Laricer of th~ 
Loveland Fort Collica Iodu1triol Airparlt, and such Subdivision 
Ic:provecents A6 recceot c.ay hereafter be amended, cxteoded, or IDOuified, 
or Hay 4, 1988, whichever first occurs. 

7. Hp.iptepn~. The Ovocr 1ha 11, subsequent to accepta.oce of the 
ic:iprovementa by the Ov::ier, iuint.ain tbe coi:,pletc<I ii::provein.ect, 
conatnicted by Triad oo Airport land; bolt'ever it ia qre~ that the 
cost& of. auch f!Ulinte □ ance should be sbarc<I equitably by property ovtler■ 
in the taxi\lay Accesa ore• havin& ~ ta.xivay eaaeJ:Jl!Dt aod other• havini 
acccaa to the t.11xiway oa follo\11! 

7 ,1, The property ovt1er1 in the t.;:xiv;ay acceu area abal 1 be 
reapo □ aible for reimbur ■ eir.ent to the O....Oer- for that portion of the 
m.aioteoa□ ce co ■ ts iocurrcd subaequent to acceptance of the 
icprovement ■ by the Cr.roer calculated by ~ltiplyin.& the total 
c o ■ t• of 1uch c.iintenaoc:e t lc,,ea a fraction vho ■ e numerato:r i ■ the 
aquarc !ootaic of property · in the ta.xlvay acceaa area adj11cent to 
tui\la, ay1tec1 in the taxiway acceaa area, and who11 denominator 
i ■ equivalent to the ,um of the cuCll!rator plu• th ■ aquare foota&e 
of l,a.nd in tho "tu.i-.,ay contribution aua" Cu defined in 

.. 

. -~' . . 
·:t '. 
: · .. : 

'. 

' -~ 

--~--~ 
' 

•~a 

--
.. 

' 
•.· 

::-: ,. 
:..': 

.•. 
·-.~ 
. ,: ~~-~-t>:~~ r / 

' '1! ~ ¥ 
, ,t.-~h :;~,~ .... ~ 

-· . ,: \ 
i. -~£_-, 

._. •'1: 

'\ t 
.~ ". 

~l _, 

~z-: ,•, . :~-~ 

062



.• 

. .. ~.= 

: .. :. 

.. ~ 

·l, 

•!• 
. ·. 
·i · 
:;: 
,:·. 
?;·t 
-.r.~ 
~,;., 
:,..~ ;;... 
"'!.-~ .. _.,,_., 

¥ 
t· 
~:· 

i 

I :ti 
I ~' 

i1 I • 

! ~ ... 
if"" 
,•: 

l ~-
~:: 
.fl_· 
·;;;. 
~/., 
:I; 
., .... ·--~ f_j'j 
,)l: ·,i: -.... 
i 

8. 

,.•. 

·,_ pua,urh 3 .l abon) vhkb bu b1ta ltaatil or iaproud ~, the 
Ovner for uu for urooautical related actbitiu on or before the 
t iae 1uch a.a i.ntenanca co• t • • n iacurr~d. 

·· 7 .'1, Triad •1tn11 to ll!lpoll covenant• upon th• land in th• 
taxiv•y ace••• ar,a r1qulrln1 th• property ovn•r• ia that portion 
of th• tnlway .tCCtll u,.. 1ubj•ct to ni-.bur11NQt of 
11-&intenance co1t1 •• 1,t forth above, to provide paya1nt a:>ntblyt 
or •t longer intenah u ••Y be uhct~ by tbe Ovo1r, to the 
Ovner for the co,t1 of uinttnance •• calculated in paragraph 7,1. 
above vithin thirty (30) da:,1 follovin& written notification by 
Ovrur of the arouat of colt• for 1thlch they au u1po1uible, 
t o~•ther vit h 1upport ins docuSNntlt ion, Puch pa)'1Ntnl9 ■ hall b1 
col l~ctl'Mi by and rnltted to Ovnrr by I property owert 
a11oc:i1t!on compo1.d of thou •ubj1tct to th• obli&at!oD for 1ucb 
uimburur:nent, which 111ociation Triad htnby 11u11 to create in 
connection Yith th• coven1at1 iapo ■ •d• Failure of ~h• .u1ociation 
to collect and pay over. to Ovner th• aaiatmaoce a11e1111ent1 ovin1 
111y, at th• Ovn1r'1 option, ruult in clo1ure of the point of 
acc,11 to th• taxlvay until 1uch 1111111MDtl ar• paid • 

7 .3. "Maintenance" co1t1, for the purpo1ea of tbil Agreement• 
1hall mun all c01t11 incurred by the Owau for anov removal, 
•w•p in;?, repair, llabt ing, electricity• re ■urfacias, and all 
other e:icpen1u nece ■ury_J_o suintain 1ucb iq,ronmenu. 

futl Fee,_. 

8.1. Each property ovner located in tbt taxiway ace••• area •hall 
comply vith tht 1taad1rd1 of conatn1ctioa and operation of 
H lf-fueling faci] itlu, and remit to the Ovaer the fuel ftH in 
the 1mount and fa~hion 11t forth in Exhibit "5"; provided that if 
then h h1r11ft1r Htabli■ htd b7 tht Owner different 1tandardl or 
diff1reot fuel fere !or 1uch op•r1tion1 on Airport property, then 
aucb different 1t~,,dard1 and feH shall be applicable to th• 
property ovner1 loc~ted in tbt taxiv17 1cce11 area. 

8,2. nothing h1nin •hall b1 con1trued to prevent th• Ovnar from 
impo, ir.g u110aab 1~ and fair feu, rat11, toll•, and charsu for 
th• u,e of the Airport flcillti.11 except •• b· provid•d in 
p1r11r~ph 4.2 abovP, 

8.3. failure of nn1 prop1rt1 ower or u11r to rnit payment for 
uld r.stu • fe11 • rental, or other cbar111 i11Po ■ ed htrda or by 
rule or r•1ulatioa 1hall be 1r0und1 upon which the Owner can deny 
the 11rn1 ace••• to th• Airport, lo addition to all otb■ r rn.di11 
which Owner may have?, 

8.4. Upon requut of th• Ower, the Ova1r'1 .Auociatlon, referred 
to in p1ra1raph 7. 2 above, 1ball colltct th• fuel fee• pay ab 11 
puuuant to paragrt;•b 8,1 and r .. it the 11• to tbe Owner. Failure 

- ' -

.. 
·-:i. 

l . ,;.~,. 

: 1:\ 
·/:\ 

.. ,:~ 
·/~~rk; 

-~ 
-~. 
41; 
~~ · .. ti-. 

•.· -~;~~ 
-~~ 
~i~:.: ·t~~, 

~~~ 
'~ 

·t~ 
'll~: ~.} J~: 

. s- ifi. 
·.·-~.al:: 

:E.:I 
-.:•· ~~{ 

itl 
·~::-~fl 

:';f~:J: 
. -'t.r.;~;~ .. : .. · -~~at!. '· 5 ..... 

~:.J~. ,,;>,I 
\/:ill =-~~·.·=-;_··~-~-. 
. ·.: ,:rft~· 
jj}t~.t; 

. ·\ell'., 
•.:::-: .f.t 

•• ':* 
:·•· 

:, 

... 
,.:-~:; 

~-

.' 

. -: 

. -~: 

063



o! the Au ui:ilitiou Lo colltct 11od rc.:iit ouch !HI . follo1tit1¥ 
rcque,t of the Ovner , -- · r:,.1y, at the 0\,'l\er'• opt iot1, rc,ult lt1 
c!o,urc of the point uf ncce ~n to tho taxiway until auch 
n•oiitt11nct' h111 been 1:1J1de, 

9 . 6.n.ll.J.!.1,Lfu, Trlad Hhall, 1u further con,ideratlon to o...ner for tlils 
/\ ::w uded A11,rct-inc11l, tIUJkc payment lo 01.-ncr of tho 1u1:1 o! One l:luodred 
1',• l l ctra ( $ 100. 00 ) annually until the taxiwa y impr o vement• hove been • 
c,•t;ip lctc<l, The firllt aucl, payment 1hal l be wude within thirty 00) day, 
,,f the li c e t hat lhi• AK,n·cinent haM been exc-cutcd by each party, and 
t Ji ,-rcaftcr ,uc h pnyi:icnt .hull be 1ru1de on June l o! each year in which 
tl , ic AK,r<•e<l>l!nl iu lo effect and tho tn,d..,ay ln;1>rove~nt1 . h11vc not been 
, u ~11,l cit l'd , 

I C . filU.il-.i.LJ.cdnrpUJIJ!., The owner, or pilot, o! all aircr.1!t Lbat 
u t t· normally baaed, ILorcd, or at•rvlc cd aha!! rcilotor 1ucb aircraft 
11 i th, 11nd provid e the 0\,'l\1•r with ~uch in!orCll.Ctlon u IIUIY l:ic rtqucat~d, 
, >11 o for.:i to be prcacr!bC'd by Chmcr, In addition to any o thrr rc1:icdy 
11li i1:h a111y be .:1 v11i lar lL• Lo the Ovncr A!iainut tb1 penon or person• 
f :. ilinj to COD1p ly .... 1th thh ucct! o n, rn c h nonc ompliance ,hall bf irouoda 
upu n 'w'hich Llic 0vner may deoy accc11 to the Airport for the aircraft 
,..It ich havi: cot b<:L·n ao rc-'i1 tered, 

11, ~~Jl~l!.'...9t..Ot Lo 01.'.Pti• Triad c ovenant• ood l!i,ree1 that ot aucb 
t ii~c ,u tlic t11x i 11ny eiuecent deocrlbc>d io purair•ph 6 i11 grant«! by 
01, 11 c r I Triad nha! 1 provide for pc r1?111nent 11cccu by O\itler to th e Airport 
l.:l11d 1 lyini; Nort h of the taxiway ca.aement. Such penuorot accea ■ IUIY be 
i n the fo r t.i o! dedicated public atrccta or riihta-o!- way, or by graot o! 
o 11oncxclu1ive .:naee>cnl to Owner, !or 11cce1a 11100& tho Northern boundary 
..,f the L1t:d dc1cribed in the Hoster Plan, or at ,uch other location 
H• lccted by Trlad 01 lo'i! I provide occcu Crolll a dedicated 11ncl fmrroved 
yu Lll~ ,vutl. ll!lproveccnt 110d 1!14intenonc'c o! 11ny 1uch acc:ua euement 
~hol l be: the rt"· r- on1!bility o! Oliner, · l!llprovel!ICnt nod m.alotciunce o! any 
1Lc css 1trcct d, 1icated to the public in connection vitb 1ubdlvi1lon of 
la nd in t he H:i ·. t e r Plao shall be io accordance with any reqvirementa 
regard lo-' t he e ·: 1e e11tabli1hcd ot the tillle o! subdivi ■ ion; provided that 
if Ower desire:. ,uch 1treet to be improved prior to the time the atreet 
1,1ould othcrvic ,• be required to be improved in connection with 
,ubdivhion, t bt.n the coat and 1!1J1intenonce thereof ■hall bo borne by the 
Ovner. 

12. Is:rw, f:C( c- i:t, Igtea,r;tion. and Sevcability, Thi.I ~lldtd Taxivay 
I c prove:ncnt and Euemcnt .Agreement conatitutea the eiitire Oircemcot of 
tl1t! partle, hcr~to and rep.lace• and 1uperoed11 tbt Taxivay Icprovei:ient 
a nd Ea1Qmeot Acr ccmont above ij1nti!iod vbicb wo1 1nt1red into oo May 4, 
1982 botwccb tl11? Citic.'• and Trhd, Thi■ Agre1-nt aball be record~d in 
the record• of 1he Office o! the Larimer County Clark and Recorder, aod 
the co1t for 1u t h rccordloi ,hall b;o paid l>y Triad. 

12.l. Th,· t ■ rllll o! thh Air" · ·i:nt ahall be bindi111 upoo 11od inure 
to tho b!.' '' '! Cit of the 1ucc111 1• · -r1, rcprn1ent1tivc1, 10d 111l1n1 o! 

- r -

/ ~l-· 
:J;il 

• • ..,~~C.J' 

· :.:11 
.: ,:f,~A'.,tj:i:;"' \ 

• t[fjtf 
·;:'¼cl'fk' 

II . ;:,:,h'J.,j· 

.)~1¥:f,. 
" ·'.'(J,r,~l t, .,,, 
........ 1, ... 
· \~It 
>;·.~-.r•~J,\'.. 

,-:,::~ijt 
-· :,.~,a~· t.;;, . . --·- ,,., ., . .. •fi ,.. 

·)~?:){ 
'· .-• ~ -< ' ~ 

. ,-::.;,1<t·l . 
.. -<l ttF 

~-- ;~j:J.!'.~-r. 
:::~i~f-f~( 
-A·1,i •f,'f· 

{ii ' ,., ..... If: '. <i~tj 
.. r~.:.. ·.-

064



•. 

~?-
•. l•.t • 

. ' 
' 

tli!! partic• hnrto, Includini each u,er or O\ftl1r o! property 
locat~d in the taxivay 1cce11 aria, 

12.2, Thh Agrc-e1:icnt 111.1y be altered, a1DCoded, or otherviae 
revised ooly by vritteo agrcll!llleot of the parties hereto, 

12.J, I! any provi1ion1, sentence, phr1ue, or vc,rd in thi• 
Ainemeot 1h11 l be determined to be void I iovolid, or 
unenforceable by .a final judgl!lE!ot of a court o! competeot 
juri1dictiun, such dctcn:iioation shall not affect ~ny other 
rcm11i oin& provi,ioo, portion of provision, sentence, phrnae, or 
"'ord ; provided t hat, notvithataodini t he foregoiop,, should 
del~rmination b• m•de that taxivoy access to the Airport !rom th~ 
tnxiv1y accru art•• o! th!! Lovcleod - fort Collin• Jndu strial 
Airpark is not available io perpetuity, then the rrovi1ion1 
rcgnrdin& i:uinteiancc co1t1 to be paid by property ovnen in the 
tul -.,~. y acrcac area oC th, Airpark ahall be decl!Mld unenforceable 
and · o id. 

UI \,' 11{1;S!1 wru:uor, thr- partie1 have executed tbi1 A,recoeot 
.cHcctivc ,,n the day aod year !int ■ e t forth above , 

TllAD D lVELOPMXJrT COllOU Tl C1 ii , 1 JIC , 

ClIY 07 J'Oll COLLI Jt!, COLOIAI>O, 
A Municipal Corporation 

- 7 -

065



-~ ::~: ~::z:- :1}~i~ 4d' ~ :-l -~-~.- '~,ffe".tM'.;,\~~~~~~ 
1!··. '71----::.-,.., · ··· .,.:·i1:,"'-":a--· llllllu~ ;:"-'" :r*m,·,~ t;;.i~-" ~ :b~~~- . 

,-; ::- ---:l:;1;.~~\~~ ~ - ~r.. - • -, ~),.c,~-~ ~ ;-~ ... .:.- ~ :._. , . . : -- ,~- -! , .''_:~--.. 

·t· 
' 

I 

•. 

Approved A1 To form : 

CITY Of LOnulm, COLOIJ.DO, 
_A_}_!un ic ipal Co rporation 

---· ) ) (-; 
By ___ ~ •-' _ .. _ _ ··._,·· .. _·_,_-_____ ___ _ 

HJ.YO,. 
DAT~: __ >c_,,_j,.. ✓1 I 

7 

Gity Attorney, City of 
Colorado 

/ -, 
( \ . 

ton COLLI!l!I - LOVXLUD ilRl'on 
AurB.OllTT. A Public Airport 
Authority 'l"_# 

•~...:....:..~ /; ,:_-/_{2_...:::::~::::::::.._-
1aircnan of the :Board of th• 

fort Collini - Loveland t.irport 
Authority / 
DAm>: ~l11ffft( ----

- 8 -

• • 0 h 

Ji 
~ -?~tjl-
·--::'.~. 

.-·+= r.-
:_~ ;f. 
·Jt4 

. :: ~-;:: 
- ~-~:t , 

:·~~-/_:_ 
. ·:.\; ; 
. ., .: ·:::-·; 

~-j :./: 
: ·:;, · .. 
i ".: . L~-~_.~: 

-·~ -:· 
'_::j/: 

:fs!j 
. ii 
. I 

: ~-::-
: r· F.· 

--.~Y 

. ' .. __ 

·- .·• • ··...'. '! : ·._ :._ t 

' ::'f' 

066



~ 

.. .i . . ..... . ....... . ....... ._ __ _ _ 

Tl•~,._, 
•--w--"' •1 

r-4. 
--- I l 

l 
1 

:. . . .. ... ... - .... .. ... 
. . - ·· .... . , ., ...... .. . -· .. ·- - -

• · - · . , , . .. -· · ·· • ,_ ... • ' "" •·· - , , 1 1>"1 , --- • .• 

~ ,: ••:.,• •••- f. -•, . (••-. ._.-t -• oo • I~ . •• • - • -• 

1 - -• '""1 el, ... \I •-- ol r-. ..... l..,_ l'I . •• • • - • - - •- -
l.._ ..., , .,. ..-. h,•- •, . •-•• • •~ ,.._ M • .,.,l •• - : • • - •~ • • ·• - • 
•--. - ,._ ._.1. n ,-..., •••-. • llf"' n w• I I•"' •• •- • ·• ,_ ,_,, .. ·--...... _...,. ~,-- .,.._ .............. -·, ..... ··-·- ·-·- .. --
,.,. - - ·w•-• .,.,.,__ •• .-,""'l ._ •II .. .,_,, - • ...,... ., - _ 
- - --· .................. , .. ••\4r- ~-· 

. .... ,,. .. 
,. . ·\ ~v~ 

1" \I ... ,, ...... , . ·- · · - ~ '-'- - · - _ . ... ..,._...._ 

- • ·• ·· - 1\.a •·-· ,. - - · •· · - ..-- • · • -· - - .. . ... ---•-·•·-- .. ·- - , ..... a'(•--·-. - ... . .... ,- '• ·- . ..... .. 
~, - , • • : , .... ,.,. , e,# , ....... , . ... . . \ ... - t_..., _ { ... ____ ~ 
- _,.,.-' .. 't ............. ~ ... ti-: 

{ _._.I ... , .......... ,,_WI[\'- W' 1/1., Wlf ,_ , • - 1'I - ..._.__, 
• Y- .., . ,.- I -... •"• ,11 ""•••• ~ • ~ •-•• - , -·• • • ,. 1 .,.~ __ ,..._ 

c:-•-. .. , ... w ,_., , ... -~ ,_.\,_ , • • ,--.- . -~ . .. 
,.,.,. _,,, • • - • • _.. l't"' ••• '• :'\J1. M •- •• ,_ ,.,_ .._ _ _. ..._.,_ 
•-,_ ,_.. .i._.. .... C"""ll"'II ... "6 I.._ ..... _..__...,_.__.._- 1, • ._ 

l't "", .... l..._·•• t\.,l\ f ...... , ... r-. .-, ... I , .,._••,- ........ 
• ' " 11 t..-C•• f ....,. , ~ n• .. 1,1; ... 4 ••• ..... 1 >1 . A , ....... - -
•- r-_. .. .,, 1 _. t1 · r,• • . ,- w ,_ : ,....,_ • • I,.,-• •r • . 
J :I •• , .... • ·----• • l\f . :it •..- ,,..., ! .,_ - ♦• I 1-- • • 1- • ....,. 
• • , ~. ·-· ·· ....... ., ..... ,.. • · .. .... _.,, : 11'1 .. •- . --- -
. .... ~-....,, • ...,. .. • · &.r ._ 1~•t ,..._. ,._., , ., lr" • ,.- • • 
1w..a. 1.,... - • , • .,. 14 1-. ff"""'ll.,.I ....... _. ,_ • •• 1l ..... ..._ • ._. 
.. ._ .... ... ..,.._ .. , .. t., (,al \ -,. -l_l_ -.,...•(•Ml 1-_..._ ~ . 
1 T" 11 1r • . n t 1 . ..., - ., ,_.., u , .,. • .,......,.. ,, _ .- - _._., ~-- •--.... -·· -·"" .. , ... - ·-·-' ,.,. .......... _ ... 
-.. ...,_ ....,... ~ _.._.... 11 _ _ ...... t, .. . ... -. - ~.,... 

-,, - - ....,.,,..., ... . .... , ....... ~- 111'11~ t 1 .. . 

I' . . 

I,:. ;: t • • :· 

067



~-~=;R~':. :~:;~,; ·•t;;.: )~ kC>~-r*:JY?~~;::~ ~~i/t~~·~J.\\f {§?:l;[!:i::;\!G:ff'~,'&~¥!/i?':/i/1f "2:"!~,1¥~,ii~(;,#:J;;[fi/~;,;~t.;;r;:~:,~:;;,~,; ,;:; ~.,~,:·. 
~ . , ·,, ' ~--.. ,. _,/ ._;! J:-· .. _· ! 

. ·- ~-.. .. , 

.. ~.-..... ., ....... ..:'> 

-,,..-...-. \ ..,..,...... ,.J.~ --:::,..-:- .. ---:.: 
~ ----

1 - ._,_,__,. ............. ,. .,,,.,,..._......,,,,,.. 

L---~----- - - --

i----"-----;----
1 

I 
I 

- .. .... •~ ........ .. ...... 
.. t\,,o•~ 

~-;~:~ 

C· .:!.ri!- . 
. ,i:'i·:<~->--".'1 ·! :_· -~- · .. _ ... . 

tt:t· 
....... -

1 • •• 

' 

'f ~'*"'· ,:;,,,;;,.,,. 
~ 
" 

' 

068



l 
[j 

.-

>- -

lU -.. -->
< 
C. 
tu 
a: 
>
< 

X 
~ 
>--
0 
>-
c., 
z 
1-
::J 
OJ 

a: 
>---z 
0 
0 

."!., 
.: 

I 
' ! 
! 
l 
~ 
t 

I 
l 

I 
I 

I 
I 
r 
I 
; 
\ 
! 
! 
i" 
f 

' I 

i 
t 

069



:::i f ~·1 •.:~1. . ·. 
~ ti'-, -. · . _::I~ 
. -- ·· J . . 

. , . ,. 
. l ,. 
;,;;. ' 

~~..aimaci&:~iiill.,;,-::.. 

;I 
; 

~£• 

;, 
·;; 

' ·-r 
( ,. 
( 

., 
., 

::- · .; ..... "-- ~ ; - . . ·. - . -~ 

Cl.AlfT Or t°.A!!D'fO'T I 

P'or good 11nd V!!lu1ble con1idn11t!on, thi, rec•ipt of \o'hich i ■ hereby 
11cknowled~ed 1 thl' City o! l..ovel.11nd, • Color.11do ounicip.111 corporation, 
11nd F'ort Coll!n1, 1 r.oloudo municipal corpoation (herein1ftrr referred 
to .111 uGnintor1H), 1: 0 htreby gr11nt Lo Triad Devrlop1unt Corporation, 
Inc., DO Arizona ~orporation, ita repre,eot1tive1, 1ucce11or1 and 
11 nlgn1, ,11nd .my pl" ~o n or rntity no.., ovning or hereafter acquiring all 
o r nny port i on of t : e property de1cr ibed io Exhibit "A"' 1t t1:1ched hereto 
(h rff'in11ftcr collectively referred to 111 ''Grantecatt), 1 nonexclu ■ ive 
,-n~rrncnt nnci rlght- r-!- way !or 11!.rcr11{t 11nd ground 1ervicf vehicle• into, 
,111on, nvrr, 11crou, nnd thr{l11g h lhl' fol)ow!ng dP. ■ cribed real prop•rty: 

TAX[WAT 1'.ASF1n:?IT Im. J 

DESCRlPTlON Or a 20 foot wide pnmAnrnt t1xi\.'1y eueml'nt 
Yith nh o rttnl!d and extended side ]in['I to ~ct ~xitting 
propnty linr1 111 Jho\lll on th!! uid accompanying plat 
at tl!Chtd hento III l':xhibit ''B" nnd iocorpouted herein by 
thi• rrfr.rrnce; loc,ted in the SE J/4 o! Section 28, T6N, 
R68W, of the 6th P.H., Larimer County, Colorado, being oore 
particularly de1er-ibi-d a, foll ow•: 

Con,idrrine t h l' t'Ut line o! the Sl 1/4 of uid Section 2a, 
.111 br11rlng N 00°09'44" l Md \/Ith all burin11 contained 
herein relative thereto, 

Cot1rnt>ncing at the Sl corner of the said Section 28, uid 
point bidn1 the True Point of Beginning; thence, along the 
11id eatt lice, bl'!Oi the e11terly lice of the 11id 20 foot 
eHtt:1tntj N 00'09 144" E 2647.54 fut to th1 ? 1/4 COrllH of 
1aiu Section 28, 11id point belni the Terminal Point o! the 
11, id e11•ec,i-ot. 

and; 

TAXI~T !'.AS!'.Xm 1'0. 2 

D?SCRlPTlOH or 1 100 loot vidr pn111.1nent t1:11th- ~y ea ■ l"!llellt 

vith •hortened and extended 1ide linu to r>t1.~ ud ■ ting 
proptrty line• and holding .apron u ■ hovn c, n the 11id 
1ccomp11nyini plat 1tt1ched hereto•• l:11thibit "!tt; loc•t•d in 
th1 B~ 1/4 o! Blction 28, T61f 1 1168\l, ol the 6th P.M., 
Lllrimer County, Colorado, beint lll0r1 particularly d1acribed 
u lo l low1 r 

Con ■ idering the eut lin• o! the Bl 1/4 of uid Section 2e 
111 bearing N 00"09 144" land vith 111 buringo contained 
herein relative thereto, 

EXII I II IT "4 11 - AHf::NDED TAX !WAY lHPROYF..'-1ENT AND EASF..Ml::NT AGREEMENT between 
TRL\D DEYF.I.OPHENT C0Rl'ORATION, INC.: CITIES OF LOVELAND and 
FORT COi.LiNS: nnrl FORT COi.LiNS - LOVEI.AND AlRl'ORT AtmlORJTI 

.•,.:,.,.: \ ~.~:.~ 

·_-;;.i 

\1l1E-

:~~~ 
: ~~~~~· i'-~~w~--
·.::\Jf:~it 
·.:,,:Ja·,1;-:'J· 

'";!ii[: 
: . ·:•"i ii~" .. . ... . · 

.){it •·~;~ 
\·:r-~;lft 

. ' -. c . ~-- .••. J.ii,j 

070



rnmmencing at the SE career of the sal~ Sectioo 28; thence. 
11loog the said ea1t line, ff 00•09•44tt r. , 1525.00 feet to the 
True Point of !lcgioning; theoce, 11long the ctnterlioe of th• 
i:11id r11~f' menl, N 89"50'16" W, 271,50 fteq thence, 35,15 
fnt II l ong the arc of a curve to thr left vith • central 
nnglt' or 20"08'31", rad!u1 of 100,00 fert:. and whou loos 
chord hrnr• S f\0"05'28" W, 34,97 fert; thencr S 70"01 113" '-', 
220,77 fr.et; thr.nce, 157.08 feet along the arc o! a curve to 
the right, 1Jith a crntral anglr of 90"00'00", radiu1 o! 
100,00 frrt, nnd -.·hoar: long cho rd he11r1 N 64"5B 147" ...,, 
141.4 2 fret, t h,..nce, 1i 19"58'47" II, 150,00 fret more or le11 
t n t hr cl' n trrlin11 o! th11 f'XIHing uniinprovtod cro11 - \dod 
r11n1111y o! the Fort Col lio1 - Loveland Hunidpal Airport; 
t he nce, S 70"01'13" W, 2213 !"t c,ore or Jell to th!! 
ccoterline of .the rxiHiog oorth-•outh tuil,11 1 uid poiot 
belnz the Terminal Point of the ■ aid ea1ement, 

trgrthcr 'lllth 1drcr11ft "nd ground aervlc• vebich acceu tr all the 
t11~i1111y and r11n1111y •y~trm1 o! the Fort Collin• - Loveland liun!clp.-1 
Airport•• the1 no1J, and hereafter mny exi1t, 

The r11H ment ., nd r ight-of-1,1ay bereio gr.-,ot ed 1hal l be 1ppurteoaot 
to ,ind b r n e f i t Rn d r u o w i t h t I, e land de ac db e d i o aa id Ex hi bi t "A" , • o d 
lo All persona u.11!ng thr taxiway And runway 1y1tern1 of thr Fort Collin• 
- Lovr.l11nd H,1nlcip11l Airport, GrnotH• 110d all prr1001 udn& ,uch 
tnxi11.ay 11nd r11111,1111 ~y.11trll'II 1h1ll ht tubje~t to and •hall comply with the 
rulo 11nd rc,r,ul11tion1 111 are 0011 or may heru!ter br establhh,d by 
governmental or quui-goveromeotal bodie• having authority to control 
the use of the said Airport. Grentor1 re1erve the right to use or grant 
lo olht-r• re.uooable additiooal UHi of tht uid rul property, 
locludin&, but not liaitl!'d to 1 utility and vl!'hich uu vhich do cot 
pr,cludn tht aircraft and ,round ltrvict vehiclt u•a&t htrtin granted, 

DATOJ th!• 4t!J. day o! 

ClTT or ,o~T COLLI~!, COLOR.ADO. 
A Municipal Corporatio~ 

- 2 -

.:--~ . ... -.;· 
.:·· 

··1t 

, ✓ 

~.:--~ 
.i::; 

'. "J:i 
·• ..... ~,; 
·• :' 
t•• 

:.\~t. 
·::: . .:. 
-:.i.} 

··A: 
~-:• 
.,;-. 

.·: 

· ' ~,-. 

r._t.: .. 
·._:·.~, 
.. \{ 
"t , .. 
. ·•,·. 

..... ..!,'. 

. ·. -:~ . .. 
. . :1~ 

:;.:·
. ;.:·~. 

~~ 1 =r::; 
-;;~ 
-~---:. 

:: ,:.: 

:\ff 
/ ] ~ 

-}J;· 
• · i _. c. 
\c i' ~:t 

. -i.T~ 
•. :._:; . 

: 1; -- ~ .; ,. -
• .- £ .:. ~ .. _, 

. ·-· :.", 

. '. 

.. 
,. 
i 

: :. t 
I i, 

: , .. . . .. 
; ... ~ 

: :. 
/·} 
, .· 

:~-:;~{ 
I < - _,: " . - , .;. .. i 

· •• !_ • 

... .. .. •, ...... , 071



.. 1:-!• 

~h1 
it\:. 
~I; 
~. 

J"c.. 
·:f.., 
~ . 
.':'!: 

., 
··:r 
:~_. 
~ .. 

. 

... 
. :}. 
-.. 

i 

~~J~~~~:. ·/;~:- ; 

STAT! OP COLORADO 

COUNTY OY LARIMER 

) 
) 
) 

•:. 

' '.1 • .. ·. 

-., 

. ' .. 
' .,·! 

~ j ... · 
The forP&oing Grant of F.ut1nent vu ackoovled&ed before 1119 b7 · .:· 

-L~- __ , Mayor of the Cit)' of Fo,\.~,8l_Jin1, Colorado, • .-: _ 
tlunic1y,r11 'ccirpor11t:.-,n, and attHbd to by t~tl'y Clerk of 1af.d -:··: 

on bl'~ .. t! o! uid corporat loo, thh ~d•y of ~,.,J,t_ · 

my ha~I and official 1eal, 
v~· r:r•:-.:.11::r.·: : r::::•.::£3 

expire ■: ', i-/'ii' ·. ··.i 

Clff or LOYILUD, COI.DIA»O, 
A Kuniclpal CorporatioD 

r--;-; r--) 

Dy \ 7 \ /_!. 
JIL\?01 

- 3 -

, 
.. 

:. 'i 

- .. 

··.-/: 
!·:, 
.. •. 

••. : •.i 

:_ } {· . ,._-
-.. 

:': 
... 
-· 

•• ! t~j~ 

\- ·· . 
. -~-~ 
. ··l 

.. .;., ....... 

072



•. 

· ···: 

~TATl: or COLORADO 

COUHTT or URIHER 

Thi' lorrgoing Grant of !..u~ment "•• ac:knovl~dged before ·1111! by 
___ 1}.n_J_Jloeb _____ , Hayor o( the City of Lov1land, Colorado, • 
Huoic:ipal CorporH : on, •nd attelte-d to by the City Clerk of uid 

.C!)rpor~tion, ,,n bt-h :11! of uid corporation, thi• .1.!ll.b day offlepternber , 
"•1984. ·, . :; 

. .. · · _ ,·; \JITN!:SS my h11n ,I and of!!ci1l Hal. 

/ 

:" i . 

7- f 1-88 

_lfot uy Pub lie 
410 E 5 St; Loveland CO 80537 

Addru1 

APPROVD> AND ACC?PT?D n 1 

!!OilD o, T1iE FOff COLLIH 

LOnt.AWD .U~T! 

•1 ~~/~ 
ChairNll 

- 4 -

I 

a..::::; 

.... : ! 
. t ; -, 

·•: 

:-i 

.! 

.• ~ -
\ · . . 
· -···:·. , . -
I •••: : 

•• -t 
. . · ·. ; 

. '. 

.\ 

; 

: . . !.;· 
·.,· . . .J._r 
·:-·! 

·· .. : 
.. •· -:: ~~ . , 

·.-~t:·::t 
... . -~

. .. -~-. 
•: ·.t:r 

073



.· .. . , 

·• 
,.:j~,;~ 

-~t'. 
-.~ -
-1:t 

.·.;: ... -- . .. 
. .. . . . . 

• ·I,-,._ • • • • • . _1 r' ._ 

.:• . · 
"\\~·'. . 

·( 

.. 
5TATE OF COIORADO 

COUNTl or I.A RUH~R 

) 
) 
) 

. · .. :_ .. -:_.: 

rtie forrioi nr. Cr1nt or E1u-ineDt 'IIU 1d:.0011led1ed l•t!for~ ., by 
ft. 1-'.e.Jv..~L.l,,Q~,._;....., __ , Chairmon of tht Fort Collin• - Lov '! land Airport 
Authority, Public Airp ort Authority, 110d atte~te-d to by tht. Sec:rttary of 
r. :• iti Auth n rit y , on be h111! o! uid A11thodty, thi• l..V:: day ,.r 0-t..L-t._, 
l .. ;, • ' --r,t-· 

\JtTllf.55 my hR:1d 11nd official 1t11l. 

:£>~~-.) 

.. ·. \._/:. 
~~J

. ·' 

~1\ 
'.:,·:··? 

. :• . ." 

?}; 
~4J~: 
_. ~:.·· 

... :~~ 
':·: 

~ · 1 . , .~ . . 
-··· 
.. t ~~~. ~ 

'}!jj: 
Co toP ,._ ·, 'X 1 

. . '. ' · 
'-:·, 

·._:·r~: 
·: ,·, ... , 
.. ' 
;.-·.: '..~ t 

·: .•,· ..... ,, .; 

:\ \ 
.• :-r 

•i::k;:; 
·- • . ... : :· · 

. : :~f 
I •• > 

~ ·: . 
· , •J.• 

·- ·: . 
. ·--.,_..· . . · 
.t.: ,; 

, t:·:· 1'"°· . : ~-
• , •. • . 

. ~r ·:1' • ~--·~ .. -~- ~ ... 
·J· .·-

. i\.:'. 

"' ~=- .. 

- ~·=- _. ... : 

.. 

. ' ~: .. 
;;; ....... 

• !, 

.:.: : ·: --';'. 

l.;· 

074



.:":. .. -.;.; 
-~ .,: 
• •,":.· J_:r.~ 

J:XHI!!IT "A" 
ATTACHED TO AND HADE A PART or THE 

OR>.NT or rROH THE CITY or LOVELAND AND THE 
CITY o r POR T COLLINS TO TRIAD DEVtLOPHEMT CO., INC, 

The lan d b rn•!it•d by th• ea•e ment i9 allot that land 
ft hn wn a ■ " Block 3~ o! th• Ha•t•r Plan dated Nov•~b•r •, 1981 
A n~ revised De cr mber 1~, 1981 o! th• Lov ■ lnnd - Fort Collin• 
In tl u11trio,l >. i rpark, being tht1 >.mencled Ma1t ■ r Plano! th ■ 
Ho unta!n Air Induetrial Park tor land• located in the Weit 
Holt o! Brction J4 and th• Southwe ■ t Quarter ot Section 27 1 

al l in To wnah ip 6 North, Rang ■ 68 W ■ •t o! th ■ 6th P,H,, 
Larimer County, Colorado, 

~\ 

'\.~- . 
;~~-x~,: 
.,.-.l-,t ~ 
·1)i:ey, . ,,.;{1t•'· 

·-= -~:~"" --:..;"'. 
r . ~-.. 

. 
. ... .. 

.. .. .. 

·.11!"·: 
.,,:dil.11 -. 

~-~~~~· ~· 
,;.:~-' -

::~11 · 
i 1 '.•{~- ' 

, ~ .-~ : 
·~ :._~[ :~~~~.-
. ·.-..:./4',._>j;: 

::)1 

075



,,lt, .. _£:/rM1:;t;;l""·_:"'1!:F-.flf; 
-.::.,.. ,.:_.,: .. :;-:-- . 

. . · · -~~~~~~ 

. .-.-:..: 

. ' :' 
'J ,1.,: .. 

--•.-.?'J'~-z:....--;;;;,-:=, :i; 
I • . ~ 

076



l 
f 

.... 

. t; -~. :~lt: 

' 
-~ 

•I 

I '). 
~~-~,~.; .:! 

~.tt.• 

·1 i~. . {;' 
~~ -~~ 

t~ 
i 
.. ~ : 

. 

• 1 .. 

'.~ ~· 
4 
~~ 

y ..• 

2. Fut,) frorn 1uch atorage- tank• •hall bt1 rr1trlctf'd to u11e lt>lely b7 
the ovn~r• ind nccupanta ot rP.11 prop~rt7 in the taxi~•1 acc,11 area, 
and no rrut,, of th• tuol to any oth.-r person or .-ntity 1h11l be 
pPr~itt~d without the ,xpr••• vrltt•n con ■ ,nt by the 1overnin1 body of 
the Fort Collin• - LoYtl1nd Hunlclpal Airport or it ■ deaignated 

3. All p~rson" performing the hAndllng of !utllng op~r•tlon1 •hall be 
adequat~ly trained and quatUi~d to prrform 1uch !uaetlon1 with •kill 
aad utety. 

4. Exc~pt 11 may othervi•~ bf' provid•d in th• Amend~d 
Improvement and ta1ement Agr~nM"nt to vhlch thi• Exhibit 
Attached, therp ahall b• paid to th~ Ovn~r the !ollovio& C•~•• 

4,1, A 1um rquiv•J•nt to alx p•rc~nt (6%) of th• actual coat, or 
!ive untl ($,05) per a•11oD, vhic:hntr h aruur, ot the fuel 
dilivr.r•d each snonth to th~ 1torag• f•cility. Thi• chor1• 1h111 
herP.after be rtferrN! to•• the "b••• fuetage fe•"• 

4.2. In ad..fltion to the bue ru,Ja&e fu ,.t forth above, a 
"■ urcharge tu•l•&• f••" calculat~d upon the differffltial betv•n 
the actu1, colt of fue-1 d•llnred, and tht "ntall price of 
fuPl", For purpo1,1 of c•lculatlon of thi• 1urchar1e fuel11e fe•, 
"rttall pric•" •hall b• defined·•• the Han retail price of fu•l 
at Arspahoft County ind Jeffco Airport• durin1 the thirty (30) day• 
ill'lffl•dlately prtceeding delivrry o! the fuel to the 1torage 
facility; ,md "fue,l coat di!fer~ntia!" 1h11l be de!in~ 11 the 
"retail price" minu1 the actual e01t of th• fu•l delJv,r•d to th• 
ul!-futtling ttou&" facility. Th Ovller'• good faith 
df'tnrcdnltion or 1uch ,urchara~ tueh1• fee •hall be bindi.111 on 
the part I Pt. Tho surcharge fuelage ht •hall be u followas a) 
!or thr. p~riod comm!ncing vith tht fir1t day of th• fir•t n,nth in 
vhich d~Hv~ry of fuel it made to th• 1tou1e- facility, and 
through aad lacludiaa the l11t day of th• next 1ucc••dln1 eltvtn 
(11) cnnnth•, thtt ht 1h11l b• ~quivahat to• ■ um calcullte,d by 
wltlpJylng 0,48 timea the fu•l coat dlffarentlal; and b) for the 
p,r{od cormn,-nclag on th~ firat day of the thirtnnth O:lth) -,nth 

- 1 -

077



-~ ,..,,,.. '. 

. ::4ii-·. -~ , . 

. ·-.,. . ' .·:, "I.~ ,i,a;;,11111'"""""';,i..,.,..,J; --c-

.:-1 -
~!;. ~ 
'\;t~ 
• ,. .:,· 
} .. '
=~· 
•:: 
:-'. 
' ·, 

- :_;.,. 

. ;_:~ 
; ,. 

i:.-:· 
; '--! ., · . . :: ~ 
7:,; 
i: '. ,· . .... : 
·.,. 
fJ 
•;,. 

; ~· ,~ ... ,t, 

~= ,_ 
-~-, .. : 

JI 
. -:;'4: 
~ •. 
t/ I 

s:·-; 
' -·~ ' .. 

&? 
:{{'?' 

~(~ 
:~;.::~ 

:11'-1;::: •: 
' ·:''"':"· • ., . . 

. •, 

-<."•' 
< • 

through •n<l including the lnat day of the t11enty-fourtb (24th) 
11\0nlh Collo11lng the !ir•t d,liury of fuel to tbe facility, the 
•urchar&r fut'l•zt' fee will br 1 •um equiv1l1nt to 0 , 32 time• the 
!u~l coat d i f!errntlal; and c) !or the period co~ncing vith th• 
tirat day o f the tventy-!lfth (2~th) ironth and extrnding throuib 
th, laat dn y o! the thirty-1ixth (36th) 1110nth folloving the inontb 
of initial delivery of fuel t o the ltorage facility, the 1urcbarie 
!uelage ft'e vii l be a •um eq11ivalent to 0,16 time• th, fuel colt 
diC[rrt'ntiol; and d) thtre vill be no 1urchari• fuelage fu 
fol loving the expir11tlon o! the ptriod art fort h in 1ubparagr1ph 
c) 1bovt'. 

4,3. I! a 1uc calculated pur1u1nt to paragraph 4,2 above i• iero 
or negativl', thl're 1h1ll be no surcharge !uelli• he for tb1t 
i:nonth, and t h tr<' 1h11} 1 b, no reiinburatment of any prior fees. 

5. Tht bau !uelage fee and aurcharge futlage let llrt due 1nd payablt 
w.ithi.n ten ( 10) daya following tach !ul!l delivery to the fuel 1torage 
f :ici lity. 

6. fach operat or o f a ••lf-!ueling facility in thl! taxiway acce•• a.e1 
~hall providt" a ll'Onthly report t o th, governing body of the Fort Collin• 
- Lovtland Hunicipwl Airport re!lectini th!! tot1l amount fuel dl! l ivered 
ro tht atoraz~ !acllitiu durini th• parviou1 calendar ex>oth. Said 
,,.port •hall be d11ivtr•d 11ithin Hv, (5) 11orking day• o! the ' tnd of 
rnch ex>nth comriencing vith the !ir•t ronth !ollovinJ initial dalivery o! 
fuel to the fuel 1turage !Gcility, 

- 2 -

078



_{_:. r1 . . . , 
I:'_ .•_:. 

RCPTN # 90007148 02/20/90 10:52:33 # OF PAGES - 4 FEE -
M. RODENBERGER, RECORDER - LARIMER COUNTY CO STATE DOC FEE-

$20.00 
$.00 

Q 

SECOND AMENDED TAXIWAY IMPROVEMENT AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

This Second Amended Agreement, made and entered into 
effective October 8, 1986, is by and between TRIAD DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION, INC., an Arizona Corporation (hereinafter referred 
to as "Triad") ; the CITY OF FORT COLLINS, COLORADO, a Municipal 
Corporation, and the CITY OF LOVELAND, COLORADO, a Municipal 
Corporation; and the FORT COLLINS - LOVELAND AIRPORT AUTHORITY, a 
Public Airport Authority (hereinafter referred to as "Owner"), 
which now operates the Fort Collins, - Loveland Municipal Airport 
(hereinafter "Airport"), pursuant to the terms of an Agreement 
dated December 20, 1983 with the Cities of Loveland, Colorado, 
and Fort Collins, Colorado, who shall be deemed the "Owner" in 
the event the Fort Collins - Loveland Airport Authority ceases to 
operate the airport. 

WITNESSETH: 

In consideration of the premises and covenants herein 
contained and payments to be made hereunder, the parties agrees 
as follows: 

1. Triad and the Cities have previously entered into a Taxiway 
Improvement and Easement Agreement dated May 4, 1982 which is 
recorded at Book 2172, Page 1459, Records of Larimer County Clerk 
and Recorder, hereinafter referred to as "Taxiway Agreement". 
The parties entered into an "Amended Taxiway Improvement and 
Easement Agreement" dated May 4, 1984 which superseded and sup
planted the said "Taxiway Agreement". This "Second Amended 
Taxiway Improvement and Easement Agreement" supersedes and mod
ifies Exhibit "5" of the Agreement. 

2. The following shall be adopted as the full text of Exhibit 
11 5 11 of the II Amended Taxiway Improvement and Easement Agreement 11 

dated May 4, 1984: 

EXHIBIT "5" TO AMENDED TAXIWAY IMPROVEMENT AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

FUEL FLOWAGE FEES AND REQUIREMENTS 
FOR SELF-FUELING IN TAXIWAY ACCESS AREA 

1. Fuel storage tanks shall have a minimum capacity of 
10,000 gallons and shall comply with all applicable Federal 
Aviation Administration, National Fire Protection Association, 
and building and zoning standards and requirements. 

-1-
orrvoF FORT COLUNS 

079



·"I 

2. Fuel from such storage tanks shall be restricted to use 
solely by the owners and occupants of real property in the 
taxiway access area, and no resale of the fuel to any other 
person or entity shall be permitted without the express written 
consent by the governing body of the Fort Collins - Loveland 
Municipal Airport or its designated representative or agent. 

3. All persons performing the handling of fueling 
operations shall be adequately trained and qualified to perform 
such functions with skill and safety. 

4. Except as may otherwise be provided in the Amended 
Taxiway Improvement and Easement Agreement to which this Exhibit 
"5" is attached, there shall be paid to the Owner the following 
fees: 

4 .1. A sum equivalent to ten percent ( 10%) of the actual 
cost, or eight cents ($0.08) per gallon, whichever is 
greater, of the fuel delivered each month to the storage 
facility. This charge shall hereafter be referred to as the 
"base fuelage fee". 

4.2. In addition to the base fuelage fee set forth above, a 
"surcharge fuelage fee" calculated upon the differential 
between the actual cost of fuel delivered, and the "retail 
price of fuel". For purposes of calculation of this sur
charge fuelage fee, "retail price" shall be defined as the 
mean retail price of fuel at Arapahoe County and Jeffco 
Airports during the thirty (30) days immediately preceeding 
delivery of the fuel to the storage facility; and "fuel cost 
differential" shall be defined as the "retail price" minus 
the actual cost of the fuel delivered to the self-fueling 
storage facility. The Owner's good faith determination of 
such surcharge fuelage fee shall be binding on the parties. 
The surcharge fuelage fee shall be as follows: a) for the 
period commencing with the first day of the first month in 
which delivery of fuel is made to the storage facility, and 
through and including the last day of the next succeeding 
eleven ( 11) months, the fee shall be equivalent to a sum 
calculated by multiplying 0.48 times the fuel cost differen
tial. In the event evidence is presented by a property 
owner to the Owner conclusively showing that the property 
owner's actual fuel purchases from the FBO(s) on the Airport 
for the twelve month period prior to commencement of self 
fueling are less than 10% of the fuel sale revenue for the 
fuel class used by the property owner, then the Owner may, 
in its sole discretion, waive the surcharge fuelage fee for 
such property owner. No prior waiver or modification of the 
surcharge fuelage fee shall be construed as a policy, rule 

-2-

080



t. 

or regulation of the Owner with respect to other requests 
for waiver or modification of the surcharge fuelage fee. 

5. The base fuelage fee and surcharge fuelage fee are due 
and payable within ten (10) days following each fuel delivery to 
the fuel storage facility. 

6. Each operator of a self-fueling facility in the taxiway 
access area shall provide a monthly report to the governing body 
of the Fort Collins - Loveland Municipal Airport reflecting the 
total amount fuel delivered to the storage facilities during the 
previous calendar month. Said report shall be delivered within 
five (5) working days of the end of each month commencing with 
the first month following initial delivery of fuel to the fuel 
storage facility. 

(END EXHIBIT "5") 

3. Except as herein modified, the remainder of the terms of the 
"Amended Taxiway Improvement and Easement Agreement" are reaf
firmed without modification. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Second 
Amended Taxiway Improvement and Easement Agreement effective on 
the day and year first set forth above. 

TRIAD DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, INC. By~~ 
DATE: /,;;>- ,,,?'- £?'6 

A::TTTT~ES:: A 

~~~ ~~ 
'Secretary 

CITY OF FORT COLLINS, COLORADO, 

Bysrn:~::; 
MAYOR 
DATE: l 2-- ~q - 89 

f)1fe6C{W}!f:f As. To Form.:. / L. , / 
-,U~ ,1..J»-A<,Jrt-f /(L · ,l)Yh f-

- 3- u ~✓ ·ii·~. 
081



. ... .•. - .. 

.· .-_;:: ;-·~ · .. :: : ~-.-:·t:: .· ... · .. \ .. 

, ::lj;t;iit'.':'i:Ji~'j .. 
: :_.•", 

Sec-r;e y-
. t .• 

G) 

,--, 

City Attorney, City of Fort Collins, 
Colorado 

CITY OF LOVELAND, COLORADO, 
A Municipal Corporation 

ByMAtJ9:= £/ZaU 
DATE: cZ.<;r«ziC ,.1.. L9/J 

Form: 

FORT COLLINS - LOVELAND AIRPORT 
AUTHORITY, A Public Airport 
Authority 

By S! 13.~ 
of the a.rd of the 
- Loveland Airport 

The Chairman 
Fort Collins 
Authority 
DATED: b Je"'-"~ /f'io 

-4-

082



 
 
 
 

              

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission  

 

 
 

ITEM NUMBER: 6 
MEETING DATE: April 20, 2023 

PREPARED BY: Jason Licon, Airport Director 

   Aaron Ehle, Airport Planning & Development Specialist   

 

TITLE 
T-Hangar Lease Update with Consideration of Tenant Lease Proposal and Possible 
Executive Session Consistent with C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(A), C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(B), 
and/or C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(E)(I) 
 
RECOMMENDED AIRPORT COMMISSION ACTION 
Staff requests direction on next steps 
 
BUDGET IMPACT 
Unknown 
 
SUMMARY 
 
On March 2nd, the Airport Commission took action to decommission the T-hangar units 
that are owned by the Cities and are rented to aircraft owners on a month-to-month 
basis. This difficult decision was made in response to safety and liability concerns that 
were identified during a structural analysis that was conducted during the recent hangar 
development request for proposals (RFP) investigation. Details on the decision are as 
follows: 

- May 10 vacation deadline was established for the A and B hangars 
- July 10 vacation deadline was set for the C hangars.   
- Airport to provide funding for up to 6 months of tie-down funding at the Airport for 

affected tenants, and rent waived for the final month of occupancy. 
- The Commission provided an opportunity for the affected tenants to present 

information and proposals at the next two Commission meetings to address the 
safety concerns and potentially delay the decommissioning. 

 
On March 9th, a town hall meeting was held at the jetCenter hangar. Tenants and other 
stakeholders shared thoughts and ideas and Airport staff shared information and 
answered questions. 
 

083



              

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission Page 2 of 2 

 

Discussion of the T-hangar decommissioning continued at the March 16th Commission 
meeting. Rick Turley, representing the tenants, presented a proposal outline with the 
goals of: 

- Continuing to occupy the C hangars, while reducing the risk/liability to the Cities 
by conducting a more thorough investigation and mitigating deficiencies. 

- Creating a transition plan to migrate the existing A and B hangar tenants to 
vacant C units. 

- Ensuring the timely creation of a new T-Hangar site for future development 
 
The Airport Commission took action to delay the hangar vacation deadlines by a month 
to allow Airport staff to work with City staff and the tenants to conduct a more thorough 
structural analysis of the C hangars and develop recommendations to present to the 
Commission.  
 
In the past month, the Cities have contracted Civil Innovations, LLC, a civil engineering 
company, and Knott Laboratories, LLC, a forensic engineering firm, to conduct a facility 
condition assessment with an emphasis on life safety and to identify potential repairs to 
extend the service lives of the buildings. They recently inspected the two C hangar 
buildings and are preparing a report with their findings and recommendations. It is still 
unknown if the decommissioning of the C hangars will be extended.  The Cities are 
moving forward with the decommissioning of the A and B buildings.  Tenants of those 
buildings who are in compliance with their lease terms will be moved to the C buildings.  
The following map shows vacant units and units with tenants who are not in compliance 
with their lease terms.  
 
 

 
ATTACHMENT 
Tenant proposal from March 16 

084



085



086



087



088



 
 
 
 

              

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission  

 

 

ITEM NUMBER: 7 
MEETING DATE: April 20, 2023 

PREPARED BY: Jason Licon, Airport Director 

 
TITLE 
2023-2024 Strategic Plan 
 
RECOMMENDED AIRPORT COMMISSION ACTION 
Adopt the Strategic Plan as presented 
 
BUDGET IMPACT 
Not Applicable 
 
SUMMARY 
Strategic plans are a critical tool for policy makers to update and adopt on a regular 
basis. The purpose of this document is to clearly articulate the strategy for the operation 
and development of Northern Colorado Regional Airport and to outline the major work 
priorities for the next two years: 2023-2024. This plan was created by the Planning & 
Development Subcommittee and Airport Commission in late 2022 and early 2023. This 
plan is intended to guide the staff, the Planning & Development Subcommittee (PDSC), 
the Airport Commission, and Airport partners in moving toward our vision for the 
Airport’s future.  
 
Members of the Planning and Development Subcommittee and staff have worked since 
the January 19 Airport Commission facilitated strategic planning meeting to finalize the 
plan and create an Action Plan that incorporates discussion and feedback from Airport 
Commissioners. To reflect recent priority shifts the hangar related goals were shifted 
and the Gannt chart was also updated. Staff will walk Airport Commissioners through 
the final plan for adoption, with emphasis on the action plan of the document. 
 
ATTACHMENT 
2023-2024 Strategic Plan 
 

089



1 
 

 
 

 

 
2023-24 STRATEGIC ACTION PLAN 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

090



2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW………………………….……1 
◊ Airport Vision 
◊ Airport Mission 

 
PART I: STRATEGIC PLAN FOR NORTHERN COLORADO 
REGIONAL AIRPORT……………………………………………… 2 

◊ Focus Areas 
◊ Strategic Objectives 
◊ Projects & Action Items 

 
PART II: STRATEGIC ACTION PLAN……….………………….. 9  

◊ Airport Action Plan  
◊ Key Performance Indicators 

 
PART III: APPENDICIES………………………………………… 10 

◊ Appendix A: 2023-2024 Capital Projects 
◊ Appendix B: Strategic Objectives – Focus Areas Matrix 
◊ Appendix C: Strategic Action Plan Gantt Chart 
◊ Appendix D: Strategic Action Plan Reporting Matrix 

 
Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission 
Don Overcash – Chair – Loveland Mayor Pro Tem 
Tom Fleming – Vice-chair - Fort Collins Appointed Citizen Member 
Jeni Arndt – Commissioner – Fort Collins Mayor 
Kelly DiMartino – Commissioner – Fort Collins City Manager 
Steve Adams – Commissioner – Loveland City Manager 
Jerry Stooksbury – Commissioner – Jointly Appointed Citizen Member 
Curt Burgener – Commissioner – Loveland Appointed Citizen Member 
 
Planning & Development Subcommittee 
Jason Licon – Chair – Airport Director 
Tom Fleming – Vice-chair - Fort Collins Appointed Citizen Member 
Aaron Ehle – Member – Airport Planning & Business Development Specialist 
Josh Birks – Member – Fort Collins Deputy Sustainability Director 
Diane Jones – Member – Citizen Member 
Troy Bliss – Member – Loveland Senior Planner 
Scott Schorling – Member – Loveland Business Development Project Manager 
James Hays – Member – FNL Pilots Association President 

091



3 
 

INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW 
 

PURPOSE

The purpose of this document is to clearly articulate the strategy for the operation and 
development of Northern Colorado Regional Airport and to outline the major work priorities for 
the next two years: 2023-2024. This plan was created by the Planning & Development 
Subcommittee and Airport Commission in late 2022 and early 2023 and presented to the Airport 
Commission for input and feedback in February 2023. 

This plan is intended to guide the staff, the Planning & Development Subcommittee (PDSC), the 
Airport Commission, and Airport partners in moving toward our vision for the Airport’s future.  
 

OVERVIEW 
 

Northern Colorado Regional Airport (FNL) is centrally located in the Northern Colorado Front 
Range urban corridor. The region is a hub for a robust mix of residential, commercial, retail, 
logistics, technology, education and research, and aviation activity.  

Located 55 miles north of Denver, the Airport is adjacent to the Interstate 25 and US Highway 
34 travel corridors and is the closest airport to Rocky Mountain National Park. Approximately 
827,000 people live, work, and play within 30 miles of the Airport.  

With approximately 300 based aircraft and more than 100,000 annual operations, the Airport 
supports a wide range of commercial and general aviation activities. FNL is home to several 
flight schools and other aeronautical businesses. A 2020 study by the Colorado Department of 
Transportation estimated the economic impact of the Airport to be $296 million annually. 
 

 

092



4 
 

PART I: 
STRATEGIC PLAN FOR NORTHERN COLORADO 

REGIONAL AIRPORT 
 

The Strategic Plan is divided into three sections of increasing detail. Immediately following are 
the four major “Focus Areas” that support the vision and represent key areas of continuing 
concern and emphasis.  

The second section on “Strategic Objectives” represents the desired outcomes necessary to 
support the Focus Areas in achieving the vision. While many can and should be completed in the 
two-year timeframe of this plan, some may extend further into the future or even be continuing 
areas of emphasis, much as are the Focus Areas themselves. 

The third and final section is a compilation of “Projects & Action Items,” those specific items 
that need to be accomplished to achieve the desired outcomes detailed in Section 2. These are 
prioritized according to their overall importance to the Airport in the near term, factoring in 
deadlines, interdependencies, and anticipated resources.  

 
 
 
FOCUS AREAS 
 
Operation and development activities at Northern Colorado Regional Airport (FNL) fall into four 
general categories or Focus Areas. They are derived from previous facilitated strategic planning 
sessions held by the Airport Commission and are focused on a five-to-ten-year time horizon. 
These areas are:  

A. Safe, Secure, & Financially Sustainable Operations 
B. Multi-modal Transportation  
C. Economic Development & Impact  
D. Education, Training, and Innovation  

The Focus Areas are overarching and intended to guide the realization of the vision of Northern 
Colorado Regional Airport. They are overlapping and mutually supportive. They are not 
prioritized, as they are all important. 

Safe, Secure, & Financially Sustainable Operations - If an airport, like any public 
entity, is not both safe and secure, then little else matters. The Airport is committed to 
operating in a safe, secure, and effective manner in all areas, every day. It is managed in a 
financially sustainable way that ensures it has the necessary resources for ongoing 
operations and maintenance, while also being able to respond to unexpected events and 
changes in the industry. 

093



5 
 

Multi-modal Transportation - The Airport maintains critical infrastructure such as 
runways and taxiways and is a hub for many types of transportation: general and 
commercial aviation, private automobile, mass transit, rail, and combinations of these 
modes. In addition to the Airport infrastructure, FNL is located next to the busy transit 
corridors of Interstate 25 and U.S. Highway 34 and a Union Pacific rail line, opening 
possibilities for integrating transportation modes to meet the needs of residents and 
businesses as well as those from out of state. 

Economic Development & Impact - The Airport supports a variety of aviation and non-
aviation-related businesses. It plays a key role in supporting the economic vitality of the 
region and is an important transportation link for business, recreation, and tourism. 
Fostering partnerships is important to realize the Strategic Objectives.  

Education, Training, and Innovation - Among other things, this plan is based on the 
proposition that this community, like most communities, would benefit significantly from 
enhanced focus on education, training, and innovation. The Airport, both because of its 
focus on aviation and its central location in Northern Colorado, seems ideal to hosting a 
variety of activities, facilities, and businesses that emphasize one or more of these areas. 
Additionally, the Airport is committed to incorporating new technologies and innovative 
approaches wherever and however they may benefit Airport stakeholders and the region. 

 
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
 
This plan has developed a set of 10 Strategic Objectives in support of the four Focus Areas. 
Some of these objectives will support more than one focus area, a reflection of the 
interdependent nature of the Focus Areas. 

The list of Objectives that follows outlines many of the outcomes necessary to realize the 
Airport’s long-term vision. Obviously, some of these Objectives will be ongoing and few of 
them will be completed in the timeframe of this plan (2023-24). However, sufficient progress 
should be realized and measured by key performance indicators. 

While all the Objectives are important, some are more important and/or more time sensitive than 
others. Thus, both the Strategic Objectives and Projects & Action Items are prioritized based on 
both their importance and the relative urgency of their accomplishment. Naturally, these 
priorities may change over time based on available resources and related circumstances. 
 
The following guidelines were used to help identify and prioritize the Strategic Objectives and 
Projects & Action Items. They are not themselves prioritized. 
 

• Advances the overall vision of the Airport. 
• Enhances the economic impact of the Airport to the region.  
• Supports the regional mindset that the Airport adds significant value to the community. 
• Reflects thoughtful financial and environmental sustainability.  

 

094



6 
 

Strategic Objectives: 
 

1. Construct commercial transportation support facilities that will attract scheduled 
airline services, expand multi-modal transportation options, and positively represent 
the region. 
 

2. The Airport has exceptional safety and security practices. 
 

3. The Airport has quality, sustainable, and well-maintained facilities.  
 

4. The Airport maintains a well-developed land use plan and leasing policy for a range 
of aviation activities and business opportunities, characterized by capital 
improvement projects that reflect the Airport vision. 
 

5. Off-site transportation facilities link seamlessly to the Airport and its flight 
operations, reflecting its status as a multi-modal transportation hub.  
 

6. The Airport is a catalyst for and supporter of emerging technologies such as 
sustainable aviation fuel (SAF), electrification of aircraft, air traffic control 
alternatives, and Unmanned Aerial Systems (UAS). 
 

7. The Airport and its immediate environs house and support businesses that provide 
and complement aviation services; create jobs and positive economic impact; attract 
technology, education, and research, and expand workforce skillsets to attract private 
investment. 
 

8. The Airport is run efficiently and is financially self-sustaining for ongoing 
operational and maintenance. It is viewed as an asset and is appropriately supported 
by the FAA, State, County, owner Cities, and the public. 

 
9. The Airport is supported by a team of well-trained, highly motivated, and 

appropriately compensated employees who operate in an efficient and consistently 
exceptional manner.  
 

10. The Airport is engaged with the community and views of stakeholders, local 
businesses, and government entities are carefully considered and appropriately 
reflected in Airport operations and planning. 

 
 

A matrix illustrating how these Strategic Objectives support the four Focus Areas can be found 
in Appendix B. 
 
PROJECTS & ACTION ITEMS (2023-2024) 
 
The following prioritized list of Projects & Action Items for 2023-24 is intended to highlight 
major projects or initiatives of high impact to the Airport. They describe broadly what needs to 

095



7 
 

be done to address the Strategic Objectives previously mentioned. Generally, they each have a 
specific start and finish point. Some of these projects can be completed in the two-year period of 
this plan, while others will be continued into the future as defined in future plans or in updates to 
this plan. In this section, they are briefly described, to include a short statement of WHY they 
made this “short list.”  

In Part II of this Document, these items are displayed in a matrix which includes specific tasks 
and relevant information and is intended to track progress. They are listed in the order of their 
assigned importance at this time. This priority may change at any time in the next two years as 
circumstances dictate and the Airport Commission approves. 

It must be noted that planning and executing the Projects & Action Items listed here comprise 
only a portion of the Airport staff’s, PDSC’s, and Airport Commission’s time and focus. A 
significant amount of Airport staff time and resources are dedicated to the safe, secure, and 
effective operation of the Airport. Airport operations are performed 365 days per year and must 
meet federal requirements, as well as adapt to seasonal weather conditions and changes in 
economic circumstances. Additionally, as experience demonstrates, there are always 
unanticipated requirements that arise without warning and that must be addressed. Though these 
other continuing requirements are not specifically listed in this plan, they are important and time 
consuming in their own right and reduce the time available to address these Projects & Action 
Items. 

1. Remote Tower - Continue support for the project and FAA certification. Develop 
contingency plan(s) to ensure that air traffic control is provided at the Airport in the event 
that the Remote Tower project is unable to achieve operational viability/certification. 

Why did this make the list: The Remote Tower is essential to airspace safety and 
efficiency and the return of commercial service. It is a new technology and there are few 
“champions” of this project outside of the Airport and the Colorado Department of 
Transportation (CDOT) Division of Aeronautics. Thus, we need to continue to educate 
the local public and government authorities at all levels to assure progress toward 
certification and continued federal funding support. Air traffic control services have been 
provided since March of 2020 using a temporary tower, resulting in increased safety and 
efficiency. Going back to being a non-towered airport is not an option. There is no 
guarantee that the Remote Tower will be a long-term solution, so alternatives need to be 
considered. 

 

096



8 
 

2. New Terminal - Finish the design, ensure financing, engage in the construction, and 
complete the terminal project by July 2024. 

Why did this make the list: The federal funding for this project ($17 million) has a firm 
timeline attached. Deadlines must be met, and funding lined up to complete this 
important project. It also provides a strong incentive for the return of commercial air 
service, will improve the experience of travelers, and impart a “warm Colorado 
welcome” to visitors. 

 

3. Commercial Air Service - Secure a carrier for sustainable, high quality commercial air 
service. 

Why did this make the list: Commercial air service is central to long-term sustainability 
and success of the Airport. The number of travelers seeking commercial air service 
continues to grow in our region, as does driving time to Denver International Airport. 
Commercial service at the Airport would benefit the citizens of our region as well as the 
local economy in general. 

4. Hangar Redevelopment - Develop a plan for general aviation hangar redevelopment & 
replacement projects. 

Why did this make the list: Hangar development and redevelopment are integral to the 
Airport’s 2020 Master Plan. The experience this past year with an unsolicited proposal, 
followed by the issuance of an RFP for hangar development created consternation among 
developers and other Airport stakeholders. That experience has signaled a need for a set 
of procedures to guide redevelopment and build-out of Airport hangars. 
 

5. Updated Land Use Plan and Leasing Process - Develop a comprehensive land use plan 
that builds off the Airport Layout Plan (ALP) along with an infrastructure plan to 
encourage development of Airport property. Update policies and procedures for leases of 
Airport land to eliminate confusion and streamline the approval process.  

Why did this make the list: Airport Commissioners have expressed the desire for a more 
detailed land use plan to guide development. The Airport has a relatively new issue of 

097



9 
 

having a lack of shovel-ready land for certain development types, which has been 
identified as a barrier to new development. Leases for development of Airport property 
are becoming more frequent, complex, and often contentious. We need to have policies 
and guidelines that are clear and consistent.  

6. Enhance/Increase Airport Staffing Support - to meet the Strategic Objectives. 

Why did this make the list: The Airport staff are the absolute key to achieving everything 
we hope to accomplish. Staff are the backbone with the expertise, relationships, and focus 
to accomplish our Objectives. Right now, they are absolutely “maxed out.” We must 
approach the Projects and Action items realistically in relation to the resources required 
and resources available.  

7. Runway 15-33 Widening Design & Construction - Align resources and advocate for 
federal and state funding. 

Why did this make the list: The project to widen runway 15-33 (the Airport’s primary 
runway) is a top priority in the 2023-24 Airport Capital Improvement Project Plan. 
Funding sources (federal, state, and local) are in place for this project’s design but not yet 
for the construction. This supports the operation of major commercial aircraft and 
enhances overall safety of Airport operations. It directly supports flight operations by 
major commercial carriers who are reluctant to operate from narrower runways. 

8. Governance Study - Assess the effectiveness of the current governance structure, 
investigate other models, and provide recommendations. 

Why did this make the list: Joint municipal ownership, as is the case with FNL, is rare. 
Since 2015, the Airport has been governed by a commission that was established through 
an intergovernmental agreement. As the Airport evolves into a regional multimodal 
transportation hub, it is important to evaluate the capabilities and limitations of this 
structure and to explore how other structures may be more beneficial to the Airport and 
Cities. 

9. Multimodal Links to Air Transportation Network - Advocate for procedural and (if 
necessary) legislative changes to allow Landline/United passengers to complete security 
screening at FNL rather than at Denver International, thus facilitating direct transfer to 
departure gates at Denver. 

Why did this make the list: Landline service to DIA continues to grow. Securing TSA 
security access at FNL would drastically reduce customers’ time to get to their gates and 
create a more convenient and attractive service. 

10. Community Engagement – Communicate why the Airport is important, how it benefits 
the region, and what the long-term vision is. Create more promotional and event 
opportunities to increase the relevance of the Airport to the region (open houses, aviation 
days, static aviation displays, fly-ins, holiday themed events).  

Why did this make the list: The Airport is a publicly owned and operated facility. It 

098



10 
 

supports a wide range of aviation activities and businesses. We should promote public 
awareness of the Airport and how it impacts work, travel, recreation, education, and 
business of the region. 

11. Technology and Innovation Center – Engage in partnerships and encourage the 
development of a new Technology and Innovation Center on or near Airport property. 

Why did this make the list: Part of the Airport’s vision and mission is to act as a catalyst 
for innovation and education, particularly supporting aviation-related technology and 
training. A technology and innovation center supports a wide range of community 
interests and adds value to the region. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PART II: 
AIRPORT ACTION PLAN  

 

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
The following high-level outcomes are intended to help evaluate the overall success of the plan. 
 

1. Remote Tower 
Critical air traffic control services are sustained at the Airport 

099



11 
 

2. New Terminal 
The new terminal is constructed and deadlines for the use of federal funding are 
met 

3. Commercial Air Service 
The Airport has a commitment or statement of interest from a commercial air 
carrier 

4. Updated Land Use Plan and Leasing Policy 
Plan and Policy approved by the Airport Commission 

5. Enhance/Increase Airport Staffing Support 
Staffing analysis completed and approved by Airport Commission and submitted 
for budgetary appropriation 

6. Runway 15-33 Widening Design & Construction 
Design completed and funding is secured for 2025 construction start 

7. Governance Study 
Completed study with options and recommendations & Cities determine best path 
forward 

8. Multimodal Links to Air Transportation Network 
Demonstrate positive trends in multimodal ridership to/from the Airport 

9. Community Engagement 
Increased community understanding and support for the vision of the Airport 

10. Technology and Innovation Center 
Identify location(s) for facility and partner for a successful implementation 

11. Hangar Redevelopment 
Develop and infrastructure plan and create new sites for general aviation hangar 
development and create a plan to redevelop the T-hangar area  

100



12 
 

PART III:  
APPENDICIES  

 
APPENDIX A: 2023-2024 CAPITAL PROJECTS 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2023
New Terminal Construc�on
• Cost: $18,431,527
• Funding Sources: Federal – CARES/BIL,

State, Local

Runway 15-33 Widening Design
• Cost: $666,666
• Funding Sources: Federal – AIP, State,

Local

General Avia�on Hangar Area
Environmental Review
• Cost: $20,000
• Funding Sources: Local

Equipment Replacement: Opera�ons
Vehicle
• Cost: $40,000

   

2023 ACIP Projects

1

2

3

2024
New Terminal Construc�on
• Cost: $1,111,110
• Funding Sources: Federal – BIL, State,

Local

Runway 15-33 Widening Construc�on
• Cost: $13,854,972
• Funding Sources: Federal – AIP, State,

Local

Taxilane Stearman Upgrades
Cost: $300,000
• Funding Sources: Local

2024 ACIP Projects

1

2

3

Fuel Farm Capacity Expansion Environmental & Design
• Cost: $250,000
• Funding Sources: State, Local

Taxiway B & D Reconstruct
• Cost:$600,000
• Funding Sources: Local

General Avia�on Hangar Area Design & Construc�on
• Cost: $945,000
• Funding Sources: Local

Broom Truck SRE
• Cost: $400,000
• Funding Sources: Local

  

4

5

6

101



13 
 

APPENDIX B: STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES – FOCUS AREAS 
MATRIX 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Safe, Secure, 
& Financially 
Sustainable 
Operations

Multi-modal 
Transporation

Economic 
Development 
& Impact 

Education, 
Training, and 
Innovation 

Prioritized Strategic Objectives

1
1.	Construct commercial transportation support facilities that will attract 
scheduled airline services, expand multi-modal transportation options, and 
positively represent the region.

2 The Airport has exceptional safety and security practices.
3 The Airport has quality, sustainable, and well-maintained facilities. 

4
The Airport maintains a well-developed land use plan and leasing policy for a 
range of aviation activities and business opportunities, characterized by capital 
improvement projects that reflect the Airport vision.

5 Off-site transportation facilities link seamlessly to the airport and its flight 
operations, reflecting its status as a multi-modal transportation hub. 

6
The Airport is a catalyst for and supporter of emerging technologies such as 
sustainable aviation fuel (SAF) and electrification of aircraft, air traffic control 
alternatives, and Unmanned Aerial Systems (UAS).

7

The Airport and its immediate environs house and support businesses that provide 
and complement aviation services; create jobs and economic impact; attract 
technology, education, and research, and expand workforce skillsets to attract 
private investment.

8

           
operational and maintenance. It is viewed as an asset and is appropriately 
supported by the FAA, State, County, owner Cities, and the public.

9
The Airport is supported by a team of well-trained, highly motivated, and 
appropriately compensated employees who operate in an efficient and 
consistently exceptional manner.

10  The views of stakeholders, local businesses, and government entities are carefully 
considered and appropriately reflected in Airport operations and planning.

Focus Areas

102



14 
 

APPENDIX C: STRATEGIC ACTION PLAN GANTT CHART 

 

 

 
 

  

TASK LEAD
STAFF PRIORITY           

HIGH - MED - LOW - 
CONTINGENT

ONGOING      
Y or N

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

1st Quarter, 
2024

2nd Quarter, 
2024

3rd Quarter, 
2024

4th Quarter, 
2024

1st Quarter, 
2023

2nd Quarter, 
2023

3rd Quarter, 
2023

4th  Quarter, 
2023

103



15 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TASK LEAD
STAFF PRIORITY           

HIGH - MED - LOW - 
CONTINGENT

ONGOING      
Y or N

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

1st Quarter, 
2024

2nd Quarter, 
2024

3rd Quarter, 
2024

4th Quarter, 
2024

1st Quarter, 
2023

2nd Quarter, 
2023

3rd Quarter, 
2023

4th  Quarter, 
2023

104



16 
 

APPENDIX D: STRATEGIC ACTION PLAN REPORTING 
MATRIX 

 

 

105


	Agenda 4-20-23
	CommissionMinutes_2023-3-16
	Airport Commission Meeting Item 2
	Preliminary Monthly Statement 3-31-23

	March Report 2023
	Airport Commission Meeting Item 4
	Land Lease Extension Rqst 5255 Northrop Macfarquhar

	Airport Commission Meeting Item 5
	R-02-23_Approve Extension of Aims Agreement
	Aims Access Agreement Renewal 2023

	Airport Commission Meeting Item 6
	Airport Commission Meeting Item 7
	Strategic Action Plan 2023-24 FINAL DRAFT




